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BUSINESS REVIEW REPORT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EGREREREERNYWE DT

BUSINESS REVIEW

Hans Energy Company Limited is a leading operator in provision of
terminal and storage facilities and services for liquid petrochemical
products in south China. As used in this report, the terms of Hans,
Hans Energy, we and the Company may refer to Hans Energy
Company Limited or any one or more of its consolidated subsidiaries
("The Group”).

Company Profile

The Group is a leading midstream player in providing integrated
facilities of jetties, storage tanks, warehousing and logistic services
in south China for petroleum, liquid chemicals and gases products,
offering value-added services in its own ports and storage tank
farms. The Group owns and operates three major facilities, namely
Panyu Petrochemical Terminal (“XHIT"), Panyu Solid Chemical
warehouse and logistic centre (“Solid Warehousing Centre”), and
Dongzhou Petrochemical Terminal (“DZIT").

Liquid Product Terminals

XHIT is situated in Xiao Hu Island, Nansha, Panyu district,
Guangzhou City, Guangdong Province. The Terminal was built with
five jetties of birthing capacity ranging from 500 to 30,000 dwt. The
tank farm has a site area of 212,000 square metres and is installed
with 86 tanks of a total storage capacity of 330,000 cubic metres,
out of which 240,000 cubic metres are specialized for gasoline,
diesel and similar petroleum products commonly available in trading
and consumption markets. The rest 90,000 cubic metres tanks are
built for petrochemical products.

DZIT is situated in Lisha Island, Humen Harbour district, Shatian
county, Dongguan City, Guangdong Province. The Terminal was built
with twelve jetties of birthing capacity ranging from 500 to 100,000
dwt. The tank farm has a site area of 516,000 square metres and
is installed with 96 tanks of a total storage capacity of 260,000
cubic metres, out of which 180,000 cubic metres are specialized for
gasoline, diesel and similar petroleum products commonly available
in trading and consumption markets. Storage tanks with capacity of
80,000 cubic metres were built for petrochemical products.

Business Model

The two liquid product terminals provide customers with storage
and terminal services. However, customers use them for different
functions with regards to oil products and petrochemical products:
the terminals are distribution hubs for refined oil products while
customers use them mainly for storage of petrochemicals.
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The oil customers of the Group are distributors and traders of
refined oils in Guangdong province. To cope with their product
distribution requirements, they prefer to employ an owner jetty
terminal with integrated facilities instead of queuing up in public
ports, with prime location to cover highly dense sales outlets, i.e.
petrol stations. With their volume and frequency of flows of goods,
users pick those terminals which can handle large scale and high
speed refined oil operations. Furthermore, the terminals must be
fully licensed to cater multi products such as gasoline and diesel.

Strategic Locations

The two liquid product terminals of the Group are located in the
centre of the Pearl River Delta. As Guangdong is the pioneer in
economic development of China, it takes up about 10% of energy
consumption of the country. The refining capacity in the province
accounts for 20% of the national capacity. The two terminals situate
in the centre of the economic circle of the province. Within a radius
of 150 kilometers from Panyu and Dongguan, the circle covers over
80% GDP of the Guangdong, more than 80% of the provincial
population, around 80% energy consumption and over 80% petrol
stations in the province. The location edge attracts customers to
engage with the two terminals for their distribution of refined oils.

Apart from oil products customers, there are customers who have
manufacturing plants in the Pearl River Delta. In their business
cycle, there are requirements to temporarily store their dangerous,
poisonous and hazardous goods in designated controlled facilities
with proper licences in accordance with governmental regulations
for safety and environment reasons. The customers may store their
hazardous raw materials, work-in-progress and finished goods
in our storage facilities. Our two terminals employ experienced,
professional and skillful management teams with well-equipped
features storage hardware. The Group persistently maintain high
standards in safety and environment protection. Both terminals in
Panyu and Dongguan are fully and properly licensed to handle wide
range of dangerous and hazardous goods. They provide convenience
to customers to move their cargoes in and out of the terminals
during their production cycle.

Revenues

The terminals earn storage income by leasing their tanks to
customers based on the storage tank size engaged. Apart from this,
they collect handling charges when providing services in moving
cargoes in and out from the terminals for customers, either by water
in the jetties or by road from the loading stations. Furthermore,
the terminals provide ancillary services such as tank cleaning, waste
treatment and blending to customers and earn respective fees for
the services rendered.
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Key Performance Indicators

With regards to the business model, the lease-out rates and cargo
throughput are the major key performance indicators of the
terminals. Higher lease-out rate should return with higher leasing
income. More cargoes flows mean more works the terminals have
done thus more handling service income.

The lease-out rates and cargo throughput of the last two years are as
follows:

XHIT
PRAECE

Operational statistics

FERRER
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A - FI R RERATES -

HHEREEE
HHZErRs  HelA

BEMFNELRLEESWNT ¢

DzIT

RMNBILE

EENTEA

Liquid product terminal and &t ERBEUR

transshipment services EHRR%
Number of vessels visited WERFEE
~ foreign — oMt 215 189
- domestic — M 408 332
Number of trucks served to BElEYrEE

pick up cargoes #H 26,730 18,829
Number of drums filled ER#EA 44,945 48,118
Transshipment volume Bags (1)

(metric ton)
- oils — = -
— petrochemicals —Aitm 194,931 162,587
Terminal throughput BEREHES

(metric ton) (/) 1,728,000 1,320,000
— port jetty throughput —EERHE 1,219,000 932,000
- loading station throughput ~ —EBAFHE 509,000 388,000
Storage services BRRE
Leaseout rate - oil and HAER —hm R

chemicals products fd=-t! 44.9% 36.5%

Solid chemical warehousing EE{tE2RAE
services R

Cargoes received (metric ton) U E&& (2AE) 74,144 73,095
Cargoes issued (metric ton) HEE(ANE) 73,628 70,463
Floor area leased out (m2) BHEEERE

(FHK) 27,000 25,100
Leaseout rate = 83.6% 77.7%

+13.8
+22.9

+42.0
-6.6

+19.9

+30.9
+30.8
+31.2

+8.4%
points
BAH

+1.4
+4.5

+7.6
+5.9%
points
BOH
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352
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3,282
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1,096,000
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N/ATE
N/ATE A

114 +11.4

211 +66.8
30,158 +50.6
795 -8.8
106,616 -96.9
2,157 +104.3
2,021,000 +29.5
1,235,000 +23.2
786,000 +39.4

80.7% +4.8%
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Liquid Product Terminal Business

XHIT

The operating activities in XHIT continuously and significantly
improved during 2015. Port jetty throughput and loading station
throughput increased by 30.8% and 31.2% respectively on a year
on year basis. The major reason of the improvements was the
introduction of new clients, while the existing clients continued to
keep their storage volume growth. Due to the growth of throughput
volume, the number of trucks served to pick up cargoes and the
transshipment volume for petrochemicals increased accordingly
by 42.0% and 19.9% respectively on a year on year basis. In the
past few years, the Company made efforts to revamp its fuel oil
tanks into light oil tanks, to adapt to the market transformation.
We noticed some improvements for light oil market situation,
in particulars in the second half of 2015. Resulting from the
Company’s efforts as well as market environment, the average
utilization of the oil tanks reached to 26% in 2015 compared with
16% in 2014. While the average utilization rate of chemical tanks
kept as high as 97% in 2015 compared with 93% in 2014, the total
average leaseout rate for both categories was 44.9%, although 8.4
percentage points higher than that in the prior year, still kept at
relatively lower level. It demonstrates that XHIT have big room to
improve in the future.

DZIT

Similar to XHIT, the operational performances in DZIT maintained
continuous improvements during 2015. Port jetty and loading
station throughput during the year increased by 23.2% and 39.4%
respectively on a year on year basis. The number of trucks served to
pick up cargoes increased by 50.6% compared with same period
of last year. The Group tried its best to tap into market potentials
and to expand its oil and chemical storage volume. The yearly
average leaseout rate of tank farm was approximately 86% in
2015 compared with 81% in 2014. Same to XHIT, performances
in DZIT in the second half was much improved than those in the
first half, and we expect this trend will continue. In DZIT, we have
an approximately 150,000 square meters vacant land available for
construction of liquid and/or gaseous product tanks.

Solid Chemical Warehousing Business

The Solid Warehousing Centre gradually recovered its performance
in 2015 from the trough in 2014. The cargoes received and issued
increased by 1.4% and 4.5% in 2015 respectively as compared with
last year. The average floor areas leased out increased by 7.6%, on
year on year basis. The leaseout rate reached approximately 84% in
2015, 5.9 percentage points higher than that in 2014.
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RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Safety and Environment

Since the products handled by XHIT, DZIT and Solid Warehousing
Centre are hazardous, safety and environment protection measures
and equipment are regarded as the most vital and critical importance
to the success of the Group. The stunning explosion happened in
Tianjin last August reminded us that we must stay at the highest
alert in maintaining standards in safe operations all time.

The Group is committed to the long term sustainability of
the environment and communities in which it operates. As a
responsible corporation, to the best knowledge of the Directors of
the Company, the Group has complied with all relevant laws and
regulations regarding environmental protection during the year
ended 31 December 2015.

For the financial risk management, please refer to the note 22 to the
financial statements from page 106 to 112.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND REGULATIONS
The Group recognises the importance of compliance with regulatory
requirements and the risk of noncompliance with the applicable
rules and regulations. To the best knowledge of the Directors of
the Company, the Group has complied in material respects with
the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the business and operation of the Group during the year ended 31
December 2015.

RELATIONSHIP WITH SUPPLIERS, CUSTOMERS AND OTHER
STAKEHOLDERS

The Group understands the success of the Group’s business depends
on the support from its key stakeholders, including employees,
customers, suppliers, banks, regulators and shareholders. The Group
will continue to ensure effective communication and maintain good
relationship with each of its key stakeholders.
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OPERATION REVIEW

The operational results in XHIT, DZIT and Solid Warehousing Centre
continuously and significantly improved during 2015. The Group
will continuously explore market potentials and to expand its oil and
chemical storage volume.

Operating financials
The Group’s reportable segments represent XHIT and DZIT. The
breakdown of revenues of XHIT and DZIT are as follows:

XHIT
MNERILE

2015 2014
—Z-1%

HK$'000
TER

HK$'000
TAL

Storage and transshipment BEYEE
income WA 80,830 733 74137
Port income BOWA 2,865 26 3,232
Solid chemical warehousing Bl Em
income BERA 26,623 24.1 26,725
XHIT

The revenue from the provision of terminal, storage and
transshipment services for liquid products in XHIT was about
HK$83.7 million during the year, representing an increase of
8.2% compared with the last year. During the year, storage
income increased to HK$59.1 million, representing an increase of
10.3% on a year on year basis, attributable to the 8.4 percentage
points of improvement in leaseout rate. Meanwhile, the handling
service income increased by 30.2% from HK$8.6 million in 2014
to HK$11.2 million 2015, which was in line with the increase in
terminal throughput by 30.9%.

The revenue generated from Solid Warehousing Centre remained
almost the same as last year despite there was an increase of 5.9
percentage points in leaseout rate and 2.9% increase in cargoes
handles. The major reason was the exchange impact with respect to
Renminbi depreciation in 2015.
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DzZIT

The 2015 storage income in DZIT remained flat at HK$90.4 million
as compared to last year notwithstanding the improvement of 4.8
percentage points in leaseout rate. The unit storage rental rate
was under pressure due to keen competition in 2015. There was
an improvement in terminal throughput by 29.5%, resulting an
increase in revenue generated from handling services of HK$16.7
million by 43.5% in comparing with 2014.

OUTLOOK

Looking into 2016, we expect that China’s economy would grow at
a reasonably stable pace, which bring moderate growth in demand
for oil and chemical products, as well as the moderate growth for
flows of liquid cargoes in and out of our operating region. Crude
oil price will keep at relatively low level and gradually recover from
the trough for the whole year of 2016. From supply side, China’s
extremely high stockpile of crude oil and surplus refining capacity
inevitably require high utilization of refineries and lead to oversupply
of refined products, which result in large amount of refined product
exports. From demand side, Chinese government came to liberalize
its restrictions on crude oil and oil product imports. Import licenses
have already been issued to some medium size and small size non-
state-owned teapot refineries, and more and more licenses will be
released with the further liberalization, which lead to more and
more imports of refined oil products. Both imports and exports of
refined oil products will directly boost the demand of liquid terminal
services and storage facilities. We firmly believe that this would be
great opportunity for us in 2016.

e Liquid Product Terminal Business
In 2016, the Group will continue to implement our existing
strategies to fully leverage our existing facilities and improve the
efficiency and utilization of our assets. In XHIT, the priority will
be given to revamping of remaining fuel oil tanks into light oil
tanks, although we have already completed about two-thirds
of fuel oil tanks revamping, so that we could timely grasp the
market opportunity. We expect the revamping project would
be completed in the first half and the storage tanks would be
put into operation in the second half. As a result, we expect
that the average leaseout rate of the tank farm could reach
about 60% from current level of 45%. In DZIT, the priority
will be given to make full use of the reserved land. We are
planning with our partners for LNG/LPG business in the land,
which would help greatly improve the return efficiency of our
assets. We signed a letter of intent with a professional partner
company to plan prospective LNG/LPG business. Currently the
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cooperation is undergoing smoothly and on the schedule. We
formed a specialized team handling the business, ensuring LNG
resource, targeting consumers as well as designing cooperation
model. We have started application for governmental approval.
We expect that this project would truly help us to improve
our performance in both lease rate of tanks farm and terminal
utilization in DZIT, which eventually translate into increase
in revenue and bottom line improvement. Meanwhile, as
usual, we will expand our value added services including
transshipment and blending of products to cater our clients’
demand and requirements.

With the efforts of all the team members in the Group, we are
confident that the Group would turn around its results and
return its shareholders in the coming years.

Solid Chemical Warehousing Business

We will continuously try every effort to expand our market
for the Group’s solid warehousing centre business in 2016.
We maintain the provision of quality services, expand
customer base, and especially introduce high-end renowned
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multinational companies to land on our Centre to expand its
market share. We expect that the business will realize stable
growth in the future.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

A 5 o iR

2015 2014 Changes
—E—HF —TOF
HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Revenue WA 223,203 211,506 +5.5
Revenue less direct costs and WAFIRR B BER AR 2 29,993 18,028 +66.4
operating expenses KEEBH
Loss before interest and tax (“LBIT”)  ERF 8 M FIER]EIE (26,875) (36,326) -26.0
(reeiTh)
Loss attributable to equity RN EIRR R AL B 18 (94,469) (108,814) -13.2
shareholders of the Company
Earnings before interest, tax, BRAE BB ITER 98,767 90,687 +8.9
depreciation and amortisation BEIHATR T
("EBITDA") ([EBITDA])
Gross margin EVIES 13.4% 8.5% +57.6
Net loss margin SFEEE (44.9%) (54.5%) -17.6
Basis loss per share (HK cents) FIEAEE (B) (2.53) (2.92) -13.4
Diluted loss per share (HK cents) FHESEERECB) (2.53) (2.92) -13.4
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The Group’s financial performances improved during 2015. The
Group's revenue reached HK$223.2 million, representing an increase
of 5.5% on a year on year basis, of which the income generated
from storage of oil products and handling services increased by
58.9% and 39.4% respectively. The increase was mainly driven
by continuous improvements in leaseout rate. Besides, the port
jetty throughput and loading station throughput increased with
a significant margin, even though unit storage rate decreased
due to keen competitions in the market. In this connection, the
gross operating profits in 2015 were HK$30.0 million, significantly
increased by 66.4% on a year on year basis and the gross margin
improved from 8.5% in 2014 to 13.4% in 2015. LBIT for the year
was HK$26.9 million (2014: HK$36.3 million) and EBITDA for
the year was HK$98.8 million (2014: HK$90.7 million). The loss
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company reduced by
HK$14.3 million to HK$94.5 million as compared to HK$108.8
million last year that was due to the increase of revenue. However,
the loss reduction was neutralised by the exchange loss of HK$17.20
million (2014: HK$1.57 million) on translation of financial statements
of PRC subsidiaries in relation to the depreciation of Renminbi during
the year. The basic and diluted loss per share for the year decreased
to 2.53 Hong Kong cents (2014: basic and diluted loss per share of
2.92 Hong Kong cents).

Capital structure, liquidity and gearing

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s total cash and cash
equivalents amounted to approximately HK$52.7 million (2014:
HK$46.0 million). Most of the funds were held in Hong Kong dollar,
Renminbi yuan (“RMB") and US dollar.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s current ratio was 0.85 (2014:
1.23). The Group's gearing ratio (defined as total liabilities to total
equity) as at 31 December 2015 was 16.44 (2014: 7.43). The
change in ratio was attributable to the reduction of shareholder’s
equity in respect of the loss incurred during the year.

Financial resources
The current cash reserves and recurrent operating cash flow is
sufficient for the daily requirements for current operations. Due
attention will be paid to the capital and debt markets as well as the
latest developments of the Group in order to ensure the efficient use
of financial resources.
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Finance costs

The Group had outstanding bank borrowings of HK$1,077 million
as at 31 December 2015 (2014: HK$1,207 million). During the year
ended 31 December 2015, the finance cost charged to profit or loss
was approximately HK$70.7 million (2014: HK$79.2 million).

Convertible bonds

During the year, the Company issued a total of HK$50 million
unsecured convertible bonds, bearing interest rate at 8% per
annum, due in year 2016, details of which are set out in note 16 to
the financial statements.

Taxation

The Group sustained a loss for Hong Kong Profits Tax purposes for
the year. The applicable tax rate of the Group's PRC subsidiaries for
the year ended 31 December 2015 was 25% (2014: 25%).

Exposure to fluctuation in exchanges rate and related hedge
The Group’s cash and cash equivalents are held predominately in
Hong Kong dollar, RMB and US dollar. Operating outgoings incurred
by the Group’s subsidiary in the PRC are mainly denominated in
RMB, which usually receives revenue in RMB as well. Management
is of the opinion that the Group’s exposure to foreign exchange
rate risks is not significant, and hedging by means of derivative
instruments is considered unnecessary.

As the exchange rate of RMB depreciated during the year, the Group
incurred an exchange loss of HK$17.20 million (2014: HK$1.57
million) on translation of financial statements of its PRC subsidiaries.

Charge on group assets
The Group has provided the Lender with certain of the Group’s fixed
assets as collaterals for the banking facilities granted.
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Capital commitment

At 31 December 2015, the Group had capital expenditure
contracted for but not provided in the financial statements in
respect of terminal development and acquisition of port and storage
facilities amounted to HK$18 million (2014: HK$20 million).

At 31 December 2015, the Group had capital expenditure not
contracted for but approved by the board and not provided in
the financial statements in respect of terminal development and
acquisition of port and storage facilities amounted to approximately
HK$140 million (2014: HK$149 million).

Contingent liabilities
As at 31 December 2015, the Group has no material contingent
liabilities.

Final dividend
The directors do not recommend any final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2015 (2014: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW REPORT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENEREEAERHE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. David An, aged 56, joined the Company as Chairman in 2002.
He has many years of experience in China business particularly in
the provision trading of petroleum products and petrochemicals,
properties investments and developments in China.

Mr. Fung Chi Kwan, Nicholas, aged 56, joined the Company as Chief
Financial Officer and Company Secretary in 2005 and was appointed
as Executive Director of the Company in 2006. Mr. Fung is a fellow
member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
He has over 30 years of experience in financial management
and corporate finance for multinational corporations and listed
companies and has worked in major international accounting firms.

Ms. Liu Zhijun, aged 48, was appointed as Executive Director of
the Company in 2006. Ms. Liu is also the Deputy Chairlady and
Financial Controller of Guangdong Petro-Chemicals Company
Limited ("GDPC"), Guangdong (Panyu) Petrochemical Storage &
Transportation Ltd (“GD (Panyu)”) and Hz=m s MNEEA(LE
BEAT ("FMNEE). She joined GDPC in 1997. Prior to that,
she had worked in various government departments and large
State-owned enterprises, including the Audit Office of Guangdong
Province, China Travel Service (Holdings) Hong Kong Limited, etc.
She has more than 20 years of experience in financial management.
Ms. Liu graduated from Zhongshan University in 1989 with a
Bachelor’s degree in Economics. Ms. Liu also holds the auditor
qualification certificate of speciality and technology issued by the
Ministry of Personnel and National Audit Office of the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC").

Mr. Zhang Lei, aged 50, was appointed as Executive Director of
the Company in 2007. He joined the Company as Chief Operating
Officer, PRC in 2006. Mr. Zhang graduated from Dongbei University
of Finance and Economics and obtained the qualification of
engineer. Mr. Zhang has many years of experience in petrochemical
industry. He has expertise in petrochemical specialized technology
and is familiar with financial accounting policy and system of the
PRC. Mr. Zhang also has in-depth knowledge in large petrochemical
project management. He had served China Petrochemical
Corporation and held various key positions such as the chief financial
officer of the Singapore branch, deputy general manager and chief
financial officer of the Hong Kong branch.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Li Wai Keung, aged 59, joined the Company as Independent
Non-Executive Director in 2002. He is also the Chairman of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee and a member of
the Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Li graduated from
Hong Kong Polytechnic and holds a Master’s degree in Business
Administration from The University of East Asia. He is also a fellow
member of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Li has held
a number of positions with companies including Sino Land Company
Limited and Henderson Land Development Company Limited. Mr. Li is
now an executive director and chief financial officer of GDH Limited,
the chief financial officer of Guangdong Holdings Limited and the
executive director of Guangdong Land Holdings Limited. Besides,
he is currently a non-executive director of Guangdong Investment
Limited, an independent non-executive director of Shenzhen
Investment Limited and China South City Holdings Limited, the
securities of which are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (”Stock Exchange”).

Mr. Chan Chun Wai, Tony, aged 44, joined the Company as
Independent Non-Executive Director in 2005. He is also the
Chairman of Nomination Committee and a member of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company.
Mr. Chan is a Certified Public Accountant and owns a certified
public accounting practice. He has extensive experience in general
assurance and business advisory services in both Hong Kong and
the PRC. Moreover, Mr. Chan has extensive experience in public
listings in Hong Kong and Singapore, mergers and acquisition as
well as corporate finance. He holds a Master degree in Business
Administration from the Manchester Business School. Mr. Chan
was an independent director of China Nutrifruit Group Limited
until 2012, the securities of which are listed on the American
Stock Exchange and he resigned as an independent non-executive
director of China Smartpay Group Holdings Limited (formerly known
as Oriental City Group Holdings Limited) in 2013, the securities
of which are listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Chan is now the
independent non-executive director of Honbridge Holdings Limited
and Wai Chun Mining Industry Group Company Limited, the
securities of which are listed on the Stock Exchange.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEREREEASHE

Miss Cheung Siu Yuen, Rose, aged 51, joined the Company as
Independent Non-Executive Director in 2013. She is also a member
of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee. Miss Cheung graduated from York University, Canada
with a Bachelor of Arts degree in Mass Communication and
Psychology. She further continued her education in finance at
Harvard University, Massachusetts, USA. Miss Cheung has over
25 years of extensive experience in mining resources, oil and
gas, telecommunications, broadcasting, multimedia, consumer
electronics and financial institutions. She has held executive positions
in various companies including EPI (Holdings) Limited, Skyworth
Digital Holdings Limited, Cable & Wireless HKT Limited, Beenz and
Satellite Television Asian Region, STAR TV. Miss Cheung expertise
is in business investment, corporate finance, capital markets,
marketing and sales. Miss Cheung is now the Managing Director
of the Maryville Group Limited with businesses in mining resources,
broadcasting and principal investment.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chen Yi You, aged 66, is a director and a deputy general
manager of GD (Panyu). Before he joined GD (Panyu) in 1992,
Mr. Chen was a deputy factory manager for a large petrochemical
company in Guangzhou, the PRC. Mr. Chen has many years of
experience in the management of storage operations for oil and
petrochemical products.

Mr. Li Xiao Hui, aged 47, is a director and a general manger of S|
X, He joined GD (Panyu) in 1994. Mr. Li has extensive knowledge
and experience in technology and operating management of oil and
petrochemicals storage. He also holds a Master degree of corporate
management. He is now fully responsible for the management of
the infrastructure and construction project in Dongguan.

Mr. Deng Zhi Gang, aged 42, is a director and a deputy general
manager of GD (Panyu). Mr. Deng obtained his Master's degree in
Business Administration from University of San Francisco. He joined
GD (Panyu) in 1996. He has many years of experience in trading
and marketing in the business of storage for oil and petrochemical
products.
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Mr. Han Ming, aged 44, is a director and a deputy general manager
of GD (Panyu). Mr. Han graduated from Heilongjiang Institute of
Commerce and majored in oil storage and transportation operation.
He joined GD (Panyu) in 1994. Mr. Han has many years of experience
in business operation and import and export customs of cargoes.

Mr. Cui Ming, aged 59, is a deputy general manager of GD (Panyu).
Before joining GD (Panyu) in 1993, Mr. Cui was the deputy general
manager of sales department of F/A{LEEE 2 &]. He was engaged
in the sales of petroleum products for a long time and has extensive
experience in the sales and marketing management of petroleum
products.

Mr. Nie Yu Hua, aged 48, is the deputy financial controller of GD
(Panyu) and a director and a deputy financial controller of ZME
. He joined GD (Panyu) in 2006. He is an International Certified
Internal Auditor, a member of the Chinese Institute of Certificate
Public Accountants and has professional accountant qualification
in PRC. He has over 15 years financial management experiences in
large state owned enterprises, and has worked as a senior project
manager in a renowned accounting firm.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

SRERRE

The Company is committed to a high standard of corporate
governance practices appropriate to the conduct and growth of
its business in compliance with the principles and code provisions
("Code Provisions”) set out in the Corporate Governance Code
("CG Code") contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
("Stock Exchange”) (“Listing Rules”). The Board is of the view that
throughout the year, the Company has complied with the CG Code
except for the deviations from Code Provisions A.2.1, A.4.1 and E.1.2
which deviations are explained in the relevant part of this report.

The Company regularly reviews its corporate governance practices
to ensure that these continue to meet the requirements of the CG
Code.

THE BOARD

Roles and Responsibilities

The Company has formalised and adopted written terms on the
division of functions reserved to the Board and delegated to the
management.

The Board provides leadership and approves strategic policies and
plans with a view to enhance shareholder interests while the day-to-
day operations of the Company are delegated to the management.

The Board reserves for its decisions all major matters of the
Company, including: approval and monitoring of all policy matters,
overall strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management
systems, material transactions (in particular those may involve
conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of directors
and other significant financial and operational matters.

All directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
as well as the advice and services of the Company Secretary, with a
view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable rules and
regulations are followed.

Each director is normally able to seek independent professional

advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense,
upon making request to the Board.
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The day-to-day management, administration and operation
of the Company are delegated to the Chief Executive and the
senior management. The delegated functions and work tasks
are periodically reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the
Board prior to any significant transactions entered into by the
abovementioned officers.

The Board has the full support of the Chief Executive and the senior
management to discharge its responsibilities.

Composition

The Board has in its composition a balance of skills and experience
necessary for independent decision making and fulfilling its business
needs.

As at 31 December 2015, the Board comprised seven members,
including four executive directors and three independent non-
executive directors, as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. David An (Chairman, Chief Executive and
Member of Remuneration Committee)

Mr. Fung Chi Kwan, Nicholas

Ms. Liu Zhijun

Mr. Zhang Lei

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Li Wai Keung (Chairman of Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee and Member of Nomination Committe)

Mr. Chan Chun Wai, Tony (Chairman of Nomination Committee and
Member of Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee)

Miss Cheung Siu Yuen, Rose (Member of Remuneration Committee,
Audit Committee and Nomination Committee)

None of the members of the Board is related to one another.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Board at all
times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three independent non-executive directors
(“INEDs") with at least one INED possessing appropriate professional
qualifications, or accounting or related financial management
expertise.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

The INEDs bring a wide range of business and financial expertise,
experiences and independent judgement to the Board. Through
active participation in Board meetings, taking the lead in managing
issues involving potential conflict of interests and serving on Board
committees, all INEDs make various contributions to the effective
direction of the Company.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each INEDs in respect of his/her independence pursuant to the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers all INEDs are independent.

Appointment and Succession Planning of Directors

The Company has established formal, considered and transparent
procedures for the appointment and succession planning of
directors.

Under Code Provision A.4.1, the non-executive directors should
be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. Each of
the INEDs except for Miss Cheung Siu Yuen, Rose does not have a
specific term of appointment.

Miss Cheung Siu Yuen, Rose has entered into a letter of appointment
with the Company for a term of three years commencing from 31
May 2013, subject to, inter alia, retirement from office by rotation at
least once every three years and re-election in accordance with the
Company’s Articles of Association.

Pursuant to the Company’s article of association, all directors of the
Company are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years at the Company’s general meeting and any directors
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition
to the Board shall hold office only until the next following annual
general meeting after his/her appointment and be subject to re-
election at such meeting.

Continuous Professional Development of Directors

Every newly appointed director will receive comprehensive, formal
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment,
so as to ensure that he/she has appropriate understanding of the
business and operations of the Company and that he/she is fully
aware of his/her responsibilities and obligations under the Listing
Rules and relevant regulatory requirements.
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Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills
to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed
and relevant. Reading material on relevant topics will be issued to
directors where appropriate. All directors are encouraged to attend
relevant training courses at the Company’s expenses.

Directors confirmed that they have complied with the Code
Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code on Directors’ training. During the
year, directors attended seminars and training sessions arranged
by various professional institutes and bodies. In addition, relevant
reading materials including the updates on the business, operations,
corporate governance, legal and regulatory matters have been
provided to all directors for their reference and studying.

Board Meetings

Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

Six Board meetings were held during the year ended 31 December
2015.

The individual attendance (either in person or through other
electronic means of communication) record of each director
at the meetings of the Board, the Nomination Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee during the year
ended 31 December 2015 is set out below:
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during the tenure of directorship

RESEHRLE CETEEREB

Annual

Nomination Remuneration Audit General

Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting

Directors = - REEEE FME=E EVEEE RREFEAE
Executive Directors HiTEE

Mr. David An (Chairman of the HELE(EED 6/6 N/A 11 N/A 01

Board and Chief Executive) FEETH

%)

Mr. Fung Chi Kwan, Nicholas BEBRE 6/6 N/A N/A N/A 11

Ms. Liu Zhijun AEELL 6/6 N/A N/A N/A 17

Mr. Zhang Lei RERE 6/6 N/A N/A N/A 01

INEDs BUIHTEE

Mr. Li Wai Keung TRBEE 6/6 "N 171 33 1/1

Mr. Chan Chun Wai, Tony PRIR(E £ £ 6/6 "N 11 33 1/1

Miss Cheung Siu Yuen, Rose /g ME 6/6 (Il il 33 1
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Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held
meetings with the INDEs without the presence of executive directors
during the year.

Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all directors at
least 14 days before the meetings. For other Board and committee
meetings, reasonable notice is generally given.

Agenda and Board papers together with all appropriate, complete
and reliable information are sent to all directors at least 3 days
before each Board meeting or committee meeting to keep the
directors apprised of the latest developments and financial position
of the Company and to enable them to make informed decisions.
The Board and each director also have separate and independent
access to the senior executives whenever necessary.

The Company Secretary is responsible to take and keep minutes
of all Board meetings and committee meetings. Draft minutes are
normally circulated to directors for comment within a reasonable
time after each meeting and the final version is open for directors’
inspection.

According to current Board practice, any material transaction, which
involves a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder or a
director, will be considered and dealt with by the Board at a duly
convened Board meeting. The Company’s Articles of Association
also contain provisions requiring directors to abstain from voting
and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings for approving
transactions in which such directors or any of their associates have a
material interest.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board adopted a board diversity policy (the “Policy”) in 2013.
A summary of this Policy, together with the measureable objectives
set for implementing this Policy, and the progress made towards
achieving those objectives are disclosed as below.

Summary of the Board Diversity Policy

When determining the composition of the Board, the Company will
consider board diversity in terms of, among other things, gender,
age, experience, cultural and educational background, expertise,
skills and know-how. All Board appointments will be based on
merits, and candidates will be considered against objective criteria,
having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.
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Measurable Objectives

Selection of candidates for Board membership will be based on a
range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, experience, cultural and educational background, expertise,
skills and know-how.

Monitoring and Reporting

The Nomination Committee will disclose the composition of the
Board annually in the Corporate Governance Report and monitor
the implementation of this Policy.

The Nomination Committee will review this Policy, as appropriate, to
ensure the effectiveness of this Policy. The Nomination Committee
will discuss any revisions that may be required, and recommend any
such revisions to the Board for consideration and approval.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises seven directors.
Two of them are women. Three of them are INEDs, thereby
promoting critical review and control of the management process.
The Board is also characterized by significant diversity, whether
considered in terms of gender, age, experience, cultural and
educational background, expertise, skills and know-how.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of the Chairman and
Chief Executive should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual.

The Company supports the division of responsibility to ensure the
balance of power and authority. However, in view of the fact that
the Group’s core business is carried out by the PRC subsidiaries, and
that the Chief Operating Officer, China (de facto Chief Executive),
who managed the core business through those subsidiaries, is
a separate person, the Board considers there is no necessity to
separate the Chief Executive at the Group level.

The Board has full confidence in Mr. David An and believes that
his appointment of the posts of chairman and chief executive is
beneficial to the business prospects of the Company.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the
Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Board committees of the Company are established with
defined written terms of reference. The terms of reference of the
Board committees are posted on the Company’s website and Hong
Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited’s website and are available to
shareholders upon request.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to
seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances,
at the Company’s expenses.

Nomination Committee
All the three INEDs are the members of the Nomination Committee
and Mr. Chan Chun Wai, Tony is the chairman of the committee.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board, making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and succession
planning of directors, and assessment of the independence of the
INEDs.

The Nomination Committee carries out the process of selecting and
recommending candidates for directorships by making reference to
the skills, experience, professional knowledge, personal integrity and
time commitments of such individuals, the Company’s needs and
other relevant statutory requirements and regulations. An external
recruitment agency may be engaged to carry out the recruitment
and selection process when necessary.

The Nomination Committee convened one meeting during the
year ended 31 December 2015 to (i) ensure that the Board has a
balance of expertise, skills and experience appropriate to meet the
requirements of the business of the Company; and (ii) to review and
recommend the re-appointment of directors standing for re-election
at the Company’s 2015 annual general meeting.

Remuneration Committee

The Chairman of the Board and the three INEDs are the members of
the Remuneration Committee and Mr. Li Wai Keung is the chairman
of the committee.
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The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include
reviewing and making recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive directors and senior
management, the remuneration policy and structure for all directors
and senior management; and establishing transparent procedures
for developing such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that
no director or any of his/her associates will participate in deciding
his/her own remuneration, which remuneration will be determined
by reference to the performance of the individual and the Company
as well as market practice and conditions.

The Human Resources Department is responsible for collection
and administration of the human resources data and making
recommendations to the Remuneration Committee for consideration.
The Remuneration Committee consults the Chairman and/or the
Chief Executive of the Company about these recommendations on
remuneration policy and structure and remuneration packages.

The Remuneration Committee met once to review and make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
the executive directors and senior executives during the year ended
31 December 2015.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises the three INEDs (including two
INEDs who possess the appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise) and Mr. Li
Wai Keung is the chairman of the committee. None of the members
of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the Company’s
existing external auditors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

(@) To review the financial statements and reports and consider any
significant or unusual items before submission to the Board.

(b) To review the relationship with the external auditors by
reference to the work performed by the auditors, their fees and
terms of engagement, and make recommendation to the Board
on the appointment, reappointment and removal of external
auditors.

(©) To review the Company’s financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control systems.
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(d) To review the effectiveness of the Company’s risk management
and internal control measures, including the functions of
account and financial reporting, reviewing the adequacy of the
Group’s human resources, staff qualifications and experiences,
training programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting functions.

(e) To review arrangements by which employees of the Company
may, in confidence, raise concerns about possible improprieties
in financial reporting, internal control or other matters.

The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources to
discharge its duties and has access to independent professional
advice if considers necessary.

The Audit Committee held three meetings during the year ended
31 December 2015 to (i) review audited annual financial results for
the year ended 31 December 2014 and unaudited interim financial
results for the half-year ended 30 June 2015; (ii) to review financial
reporting, internal control and compliance procedures; (iii) to review
the scope of work and make recommendations on the appointment
of the auditors; and (iv) to review the terms of reference of Audit
Committee.

There is no material uncertainty relating to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

Corporate Governance Functions
The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Board reviewed
and monitored the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance, training and continuous professional development of
directors and reviewing the Company’s compliance with the code
and disclosure in this report.
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

All the directors represented the senior management of the
Company. Further particulars regarding directors’ remuneration and
the five highest paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant
to Appendix 16 to the listing rules are set out in notes 7 and 8 to
the financial statements, respectively.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the "Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the directors and all of them
have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2015.

The Company has also established written guidelines on terms
no less exacting than the Model Code (the “Employees Written
Guidelines”) for securities transactions by employees who are likely
to possess inside information of the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines
by the employees was noted by the Company.

Responsibilities in respect of the Financial Statements and
Auditors’ Remuneration

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports,
announcements and other financial disclosures required under the
Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2015.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
“Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 43 to 44.

The remuneration paid to the external auditors of the Company in
respect of audit services and non-audit services for the year ended
31 December 2015 was disclosed on page 80.
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Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate risk
management and internal control system to safeguard shareholder
investments and Company assets, and reviewing its effectiveness on
an annual basis.

The Company has maintained a tailored governance structure
with defined lines of responsibility and appropriate delegation of
responsibility and authority to the senior management.

The Group's internal control framework, covering all material
controls including financial, operational and compliance controls
is established. The internal control framework also provides for
identification and management of risk.

The management is accountable to the Board for operating and
monitoring the system of internal control and for providing assurance
to the Board that it has done so. The Board forms its own view on
effectiveness after due and careful enquiry based on the information
and assurances provided to it.

During the year under review, the Board has conducted a review
of the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
system of the Group.

Risk Management

The Company improves its business and operational activities by
identifying the areas of significant business risks via a regular review
and taking appropriate measures to control and mitigate these risks.
The management of the Company reviews all significant control
policies and procedures and highlights all significant matters to the
Board and Audit Committee.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard the interests and rights of shareholders, a separate
resolution is proposed for each substantially separate issue at
shareholder meetings, including the election of individual directors.
All resolutions proposed at the shareholders’ meetings are voted by
poll pursuant to the Listing Rules. The poll results are also posted on
the websites of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the
Company immediately after the relevant shareholders’ meetings.

30 ANNUAL REPORT 2015 HANS ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED

AR
EXgREREEEEZRAREERA
MEIERS - URERRIRERARAE

= WERFRAEREB

ARBRBEFTEZERRE  HpS
BREZBERERASREIEAB LR
ANEEEHEERIK

@ﬁﬂ

B ASBANMEITER - PRABE
RERZ - BRYE KERBREE R
ERESTRAEIR IR M BRI M AR o

EEEBRABEE RS BERERAE
EeAE  YHESSRIEFECETES
B - ESSEMERENRREEDE
ERBECEN  AEHRG2BRIESR
ITERER

CEFER  EFGCRTASERRER
KAEEIERR DB

ERER

NN B B TE HARR AT AR TE BB K S 7S R R
B - ARIRBUE E i hE R B AR % F
Rk - HMBCEE X REE IS - AQ

AEEERMMAEEREERRLIER

TREFEMERZEERAIRLMBE
REM-

IR RAEF
RIRERR Z e m LAERN - BERAE L3
FHEABUFEANR2REER B

HRERES - IBEERRAGRZMR
%m@fimﬁmM&mﬁﬁ%%°&¥
BRNENEEAERRARSRTERNE
/5)45%Zﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂiilfﬂZﬁﬂiilfﬂéﬁﬁﬁ<



Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting by Shareholders
Pursuant to article 72 of the Company’s articles of association,
general meetings shall be convened on the written requisition of any
two or more members of the Company deposited at the principal
place of business of the Company in Hong Kong or, in the event
that the Company ceases to have such a principal place of business,
the registered office specifying the objects of the meeting and
signed by the requisitionists, provided that such requisitionists held as
at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company which carries the right of voting
at general meetings of the Company.

If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit of the
requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting, the requisitionists
themselves or any of them representing more than one-half of the
total voting rights of all of them, may convene the extraordinary
general meeting in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that
in which meetings may be convened by the Board provided that
any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of
three months from the date of deposit of the requisition, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionists as a result of the
failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to them by the Company.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

There are no provisions in the company’s articles of association
or the Cayman Islands Companies Law for shareholders to move
new resolutions at general meetings. Shareholders who wish to
move a resolution may request the Company to convene a general
meeting in accordance with the procedures set out in the preceding
paragraph.

As regards proposing a person for election as a director of the
Company, please refer to the procedures posted on the Company’s
website.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board
For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company,
shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company.

Note: The Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous
enquiries.
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Contact Details
Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned
above to the following:

Address:  Unit 2608, 26th Floor, Harbour Centre, 25 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong (For the attention of the Company
Secretary)

Email: info@hansenergy.com.hk

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The shareholders’ meetings of the Company provide an opportunity
for communication between the shareholders and the Board.
The Chairman of the Board, all INEDs, and the chairmen of all
Board committees (or their delegates) and where applicable, the
independent Board committee, are available at the general meetings
to meet shareholders and answer their enquiries.

The Chairman of the Board and some of the directors were unable
to attend the last annual general meeting held on 21 May 2015
due to business engagement. They will use their best endeavours to
attend all future shareholders’ meetings of the Company.

During the year under review, the Company has not made any
changes to its articles of association. The Company places great
emphasis to enhance communications and relationships with its
investors as the Company’s policy to maintain timely and effective
communications with their shareholders. This is crucial aspect of
good corporate governance, and part of the statutory and regulatory
regime. Designated senior management maintains regular dialogue
with existing shareholders and potential institutional investors and
analysts to keep them abreast of the Company’s developments.
Enquiries from investors are dealt with in an informative and timely
manner.

To promote effective communication, the Company also maintains a
website at www.hansenergy.com, where extensive information and
updates on the Company’s business developments and operations,
financial information, corporate governance practices and other
information are posted.
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The directors have pleasure in presenting their annual report and
the audited financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 12 to the
financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Details of business review as required by Schedule 5 to the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, including a discussion of the principal
risks and uncertainties facing the Group's business are set out
in the section of the Business Review Report and Management
Discussion and Analysis from page 4 to 15 of this Annual Report.
This discussion forms part of this directors’ report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015 are
set out in the consolidated income statement on page 45.

Taking into account of the cash requirement for the repayment
of bank loan of the Group, the directors do not recommend the
payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2015
(2014: Nil). However, the Board of Directors will determine dividend
distribution policies once the Group has secured stable income from
the operations in coming years.

RESERVES

The amounts and particulars of material transfers to and from
reserves of the Group and of the Company during the year are set
out on the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and in note
21 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
At 31 December 2015, the Company’s reserve available for
distribution amounted to HK$165 million (2014: HK$169 million).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of movements of property, plant and equipment during the
year are set out in note 10 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details in movement in share capital of the Company are set out in
note 21 to the financial statements.
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DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive directors

Mr. David An (Chairman)

Mr. Fung Chi Kwan, Nicholas
Ms. Liu Zhijun

Mr. Zhang Lei

Independent non-executive directors
Mr. Li Wai Keung

Mr. Chan Chun Wai, Tony

Miss Cheung Siu Yuen, Rose

Pursuant to Article 116 of the Company’s articles of association,
Mr. Fung Chi Kwan, Nicholas, Mr. Li Wai Keung and Miss Cheung
Siu Yuen, Rose shall retire by rotation and being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Miss Cheung Siu Yuen, Rose has entered into a letter of appointment
with the Company for a term of three years commencing from 31
May 2013, subject to, inter alia, retirement from office by rotation at
least once every three years and re-election in accordance with the
Company’s Articles of Association.

The term of office of each of the independent non-executive
directors (“INEDs"”) is the period up to his retirement as required by
the Company'’s articles of association.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors being proposed for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 469 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the directors of
the Company is currently in force and was in force throughout this
year.

34 ANNUAL REPORT 2015 HANS ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED

=
RAFERBEAREAHIL  ARFZ

BITES
HERE(EE)
FEELL
SREREE

BYFHTES
FEBELE
RIRE L
EN Nl

SEE ==
Voo Iy

RERNQABDEMERAAE 11605
BEE - FERBEERE/ G/ NEZERED
BERTZERRBFAG LHESR @ HER
FNABERALBENEG LERET -

EERBEN

B/ NEERARBRILERES - EH
B —=—FRA=-T—HRBAH=F
WA (EFRBRE)REARFABERAR
ELB=FRERT-RANEREEE-

BBFATES((BYFRTESDZ
EHDEERARREBERMARER
EZBRIE -

B EXFrIEEESN - FTERRAIKRITZ
BRBFAG L BREFTCESE  HiER
AR BV EATAAIPT BB A R AT SZ AN S B —
FANAATFEEECKERERIN M LE
ZIRIFEH -

BT RERX
NARRBEEZRE e AR EFFHME K
X (EZERBBRAEDIF46915) R IELE
MERFRA—EBY °



DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2015, the interests and short positions of
directors of the Company and their associates in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) which have been notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set
out in Appendix 10 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) were as follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company
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Name of director Capacity Positions positions Positions positions
Espg #E #E KA #E e
Mr. David An* Beneficiary of a trust 2,548,203,980 Nil & 68.27% Nil £
FExAE EREXEA (Note PffzE 1)
Beneficial owner EzHH A 218,390,000 Nil £ 5.85% Nil &
Note: sy -
1. The shares are held directly as to 209,773,980 shares by Extreme Wise 1. &% % 1H 7 %5209,773,980 i% f Extreme

Investments Ltd (“Extreme Wise”) and 2,338,430,000 shares by Vand
Petro-Chemicals (BVI) Company Ltd (“Vand Petro-Chemical”). Both
companies are wholly-owned by Julius Baer Family Office & Trust Ltd.
("Julius Baer”) which is the trustee of a trust and Mr. David An is one
of the eligible beneficiaries. By virtue of SFO, Mr. David An is deemed
to be interested in the 2,548,203,980 shares.

* Mr. David An, being a director of the Company, is also acting as the
Chief Executive of the Company.

Wise Investments Ltd([ Extreme Wise )
HEHAE 0 M2,338,430,000/% 8 fHVand
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, none of the
directors of the Company and their associates had any interest or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations which had to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO or which were required,
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein or which were required, pursuant to the Model
Code, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES
Other than the share option scheme in note 20 and unsecured
convertible bonds in note 16 to the financial statements, at no time
during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to
any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debts securities
(including debentures) of, the Company or any other body corporate
and none of the directors, their spouses or children under the age of
18, had any rights to subscribe for securities of the Company, or had
exercised any such rights.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

There were no contracts of significance to which the Company, or
any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly and indirectly,
subsisting at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

There were no transactions which were required to be disclosed as
connected transactions in accordance with the requirements of the
Listing Rules.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company had received, from each of the INEDs, an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to the rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. The Company considered all of the INEDs are
independent.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to a high standard of corporate
governance. The Company’s corporate governance practices are
based on the principles and the code provisions (“Code Provision”) as
set out in the Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”) contained
in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. The Company regularly reviews
its corporate governance practices to ensure that these continue
to meet the requirements of the CG Code. Throughout the year
2015, the Company has complied with the CG Code except for
the deviations from the Code Provisions A.2.1, A.4.1 and E.1.2. For
details, please refer to the Corporate Governance Report on pages
20 to 32.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN THE SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2015, shareholders (other than directors of the
Company) who had interests and short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company which have been disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company

Number of shares
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Mr. David An #2554 (Note FiisE 1) 2,766,593,980 Nil 4 74.12% Nil

Julius Baer (Note FfizE 1) 2,548,203,980 Nil 4= 68.27% Nil 42

Vand Petro-Chemicals (Note 3T 1) 2,338,430,000 Nil 4% 62.65% Nil 4%

Dubai World Corporation (Note FffsE 2) 370,000,000 Nil 4 9.91% Nil 4%

Extreme Wise (Note Fff3E 1) 209,773,980 Nil £ 5.62% Nil 4%

Central Huijin Investment Ltd 263,019,000 Nil £ 7.05% Nil £
PRfESIREBIRE TR (Note Mtz 3)

EBRRERAT —T-AFFR 37



DIRECTORS' REPORT
EERE

Notes:

1. The shares are held directly as to 218,390,000 shares by Mr. David
An personally, as to 209,773,980 shares by Extreme Wise and
2,338,430,000 shares by Vand Petro-Chemicals. Both companies are
wholly-owned by Julius Baer which is the trustee of a trust and Mr.
David An is one the eligible beneficiaries. By virtue of the SFO, Mr.
David An is deemed to be interested in the 2,766,593,980 shares. Mr.
David An is a director of Extreme Wise, Vand Petro-Chemicals and the
Company.

2. The shares are held directly by Pony HK World, indirectly wholly-owned
by Dubai World Corporation.

3. Central Huijin Investment Ltd is deemed to be interested in the
263,019,000 shares, which is directly held by CCB International
Overseas Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, the Company has
not been notified by any persons (other than directors or the chief
executive of the Company) who had interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

EQIUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS
Details of the eqiuity-linked agreements entered into during the year
or subsisting at the end or the year are set out below:

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

During the year, the Company issued a total of HK$50 million
unsecured convertible bonds in 2015, bearing interest rate at 8%
per annum, details of which are set out in note 16 to the financial
statements.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 28 December 2012,
the Company adopted a Share Option Scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”). The purpose of the 2012 Share Option Scheme is to
enable the Company to recruit and retain high-caliber employees
and attract resources that are available to the Group and to provide
the Company with a means of giving incentive to, rewarding,
remunerating, compensating and/or providing benefits to such
persons who contribute or may bring benefit to the Group. The
scheme remains in force for a period of 10 years from adoption of
such scheme and expires on 27 December 2022.

Under the Share Option Scheme, the board of directors of the
Company (the “directors”) may at their discretion grant options to
any eligible participant including any employee, director, consultant,
advisor, agent, business affiliate, business partner, joint venture
partner, strategic partner, or any supplier or provider of goods or
services to the Company or any subsidiaries of the Company as may
be determined by the directors from time to time to subscribe for
the shares of the Company (the “shares”).

Options granted must be taken up within 21 days of the date of
grant, upon payment of HK$1 per option. The maximum number
of shares in respect to which options may be granted under the
scheme shall not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company on the date of adopting the scheme. The limit may be
refreshed at any time provided that the new limit must not be in
aggregate exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company
as at the date of the shareholders’ approval in general meeting.
However, the total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the scheme and any other scheme of the Company must
not in aggregate exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time to
time. The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted to any individual in any 12-month period shall not
exceed 1% of the shares in issue on the last date of such 12-month
period unless approval of the shareholders of the Company has
been obtained in accordance with the Listing Rules. Options granted
to substantial shareholders or independent non-executive directors
in excess of issued share capital of the Company or with a value
in excess of HK$5 million must be approved in advance by the
shareholders of the Company.
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Options may be exercised at any time from date of grant of the
share option to the 10th anniversary of the date of grant as may be
determined by the directors. The exercise price is determined by the
directors, and will not be less than the higher of the closing price per
share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the
date of the grant of the options and the average closing price per
share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of the grant
of the options.

As at the reporting date, the maximum number of shares in respect
to which options may be granted under the scheme is 373,263,800
shares being 10% of the issued share capital of the company. No
share option was granted to or exercised by any of the directors and
senior management during the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014:
Nil) and no share option was outstanding under the scheme as at 31
December 2015 (2014: Nil).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate revenue attributable to the Group's
five largest customers comprised approximately 25.1% of the
Group's total revenue and the revenue attributable to the Group’s
largest customer were approximately 6.0% of the Group’s total
revenue. The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group's five
largest suppliers comprised approximately 42.8% of the Group's
total purchases and the purchases attributable to the Group’s largest
supplier were approximately 15.5% of the Group'’s total purchases.

Saved as disclosed above, none of the directors, their associates or
any shareholder which, to the knowledge of the directors, owned
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital had any
interest in the share capital of any of the five largest customers or
suppliers of the Group.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Details of movements in the Group’s bank loans and other
borrowings during the year are set out in note 16 to the financial
statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association although there is no restriction against such
rights under the laws in the Cayman Islands.
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EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had a workforce of
approximately 475 employees (2014: 445), 460 (2014 430) of which
worked for the terminals. Every year, the Group devises a budget
which states total salary and bonus plan for the year to encourage
the Group's employees to contribute their best efforts and to make
maximum economic benefits to the Group. In accordance with the
relevant government regulations in the PRC, the Group is required
to cover social insurance, including but not limited to retirement,
medical, workman compensation and unemployment insurance as
well as housing fund for every qualified employee in the PRC. With
these insurance policies and staff benefits, the Group hopes to
provide a reasonable welfare for each qualified employee.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY'S LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities.

PUBLIC FLOAT

For the year ended 31 December 2015, based on the information
that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge
of the directors, the Company has maintained the prescribed public
float under the Listing Rules.

LITIGATION

As at 31 December 2015, there were no material contingent
liabilities in respect of outstanding litigation or legal proceedings
that need to be disclosed.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
EEHE

AUDITORS

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as
auditors of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting.

On behalf of the Board
David An

Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 March 2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

18 3 2% B R

N

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
HANS ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hans
Energy Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 45 to 115, which comprise
the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2015, the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then
ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BB RS

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2015 and of the Group’s financial performance and cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

EMPHASIS OF MATTER

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to note 1(b)
to the consolidated financial statements which describes that the
Group is committed to repay bank loans, convertible bonds and
interest totalling HK$168,281,000 within one year and that the
Group's ability to meet these liquidity requirements depend on its
ability to generate sufficient net cash inflows from future operations
and/or other sources. These facts and circumstances indicate the
existence of material uncertainties which may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a
going concern basis, the validity of which is dependent on the
Group'’s ability to generate sufficient cash flows from future
operations and/or other sources to meet its liquidity commitments.
Further details are set out in note 1(b). The consolidated financial
statements do not include any adjustments that would result should
the Group be unable to continue to operate as a going concern.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

21 March 2016
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

mEEER

for the year ended 31 December 2015 HE—T—RF+-—A=+—HIFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TE517R)

Revenue
Direct costs and operating expenses

Other income
Administrative expenses

Loss from operations
Finance costs

Loss before taxation
Income tax

Loss for the year

Attributable to:
Equity shareholders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Loss for the year

Loss per share
— basic

— diluted

The notes on pages 51 to 115 form part of these financial

statements.

A
EERAREZER

HAptb Uz
THEM

FAREAR AN

BRBLATE IR
Pris i

ERER
P
ZIN/NE] 4
SRR
ERER
SHER
—EA
—

3 223,203 211,506
(193,210) (193,478)
29,993 18,028
4 6,393 3,427
(63,261) (57,781)
(26,875) (36,326)
5(a) (70,656) (79,165)
5 (97,531) (115,491)
6(a) (2,742) 125
(100,273) (115,366)
(94,469) (108,814)
(5,804) (6,552)
(100,273) (115,366)

9

(2.53 cents)

(2.92 cents)

(2.53 cents)

(2.92 cents)

HNES1BEE1158 2 Wit A48 I E 81
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meEZHEBER

for the year ended 31 December 2015 HHZE—ZF—HF+-_A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A 7THI7R)

Loss for the year FREE (100,273) (115,366)

Other comprehensive income for the year: FRHM2EE :

ltem that may be reclassified subsequently to  H1i&AJae EF DA R4 A 1E

consolidated income statement: mFEMIER ¢
— Exchange differences on translation of —RE B AR ISRE
financial statements of subsidiaries = (17,196) (1,572)

Total comprehensive income for the year FRZEWNZEEE (117,469) (116,938)
Attributable to: FE1L -
Equity shareholders of the Company ViN/NE] 39 (110,289) (110,241)
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR R A (7,180) (6,697)
Total comprehensive income for the year FRAZEWEHALE (117,469) (116,938)

The notes on pages 51 to 115 form part of these financial #HRES1BZ=1158 2 Mt zE ABAEK I FE
statements. Bz 2 —8D -
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

HheEERER

at 31 December 2015 R=ZZE—HF+-_A=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TE517R)

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Interests in land held for own use
under operating leases

Prepayments for construction costs

Intangible assets

Deferred tax assets

Current assets

Interests in land held for own use
under operating leases

Consumable parts

Trade and other receivables

Current tax recoverable

Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities
Other payables and accruals
Bank loans and other borrowings

Net current (liabilities)/assets

Total assets less current liabilities

FRBEE

LE T E
REGLHEERIEERZ
b
FREERAR 2 BN IR
BVEE
EXETIREE

RBEE

RIBKEHERIEB R
o b 1 5

HFEMm

B 5 M AR FEIRIR

AR IR

RAekRELFEAR

REAE

HAb R FIR AR E A

RITERREMER

nE (Rl EEFE
HEERRBAE

10(b)

11
17(b)

10(b)
13

17(a)
14(a)

15

1,088,906 1,269,767
243,603 265,848
10,667 21,558
1,988 2,208
14,839 =
1,360,003 1,559,381
6,727 7,145
14,145 16,463
61,600 62,680
545 18,630
52,703 46,032
135,720 150,950
50,314 59,182
109,211 63,380
159,525 122,562
(23,805) 28,388
1,336,198 1,587,769
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
FEEEAEX

at 31 December 2015 R=F—RHF+=-A=+—8H
[Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T5I7R)

Non-current liabilities ERBARS
Deferred tax liabilities REHIBEE 17(b) 4,776 5,663
Bank loans and other borrowings RITERREMEE 16 1,016,947 1,143,366
Amounts due to related parties &1~ BaHGe T5 2 5RIE 18 228,696 235,961
1,250,419 1,384,990
NET ASSETS BEERE 85,779 202,779
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXR#E
Share capital (&N 21(b) 373,264 373,264
Reserves B (308,049) (198,229)
Total equity attributable to equity Zx2 B RREK
shareholders of the Company RS 65,215 175,035
Non-controlling interests FEiER RS 20,564 27,744
TOTAL EQUITY R 85,779 202,779

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 21 RZE—AF=A=-+—HEZESSiE

March 2016. RAXRETIEE -
David An Fung Chi Kwan, Nicholas
HE B
Chairman Executive Director
*E HITESE

The notes on pages 51 to 115 form part of these financial #RES1BZ=1158 2 Mt zE ABAEMK I FE
statements. Bz 2 —8D -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GEREZBER

for the year ended 31 December 2015 #iZ —T—RF+-_A=+—HIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TE517R)

Balance at 1 January 2014

Changes in equity for 2014:
Loss for the year
Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

Balance at 31 December 2014
and 1 January 2015

Changes in equity for 2015

Loss for the year
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income

Issuance of convertible honds

Balance at 31 December 2015

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
ARARFEGES

Non-
Share Share Special  Translation ~ Statutory Capital - Accumulated controlling Total

capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests equity
Ba  ROER  HEBE  EXRE  tERE  BfRBE  ZRER ARt FERER bl
) $000 $000 $000 ) ) ) $000 $000 §000

o o % i o o o o %

R=E-IE

-A-Riy MWL 04T (51489 11740 31,947 - (6%413 285276 MM 39717
“E-MEREEE:

EREE - - - - - - (108814 (108814) (6552 (115,366)
Ef2ERE - - - (1427) - = - (142) (145) (1572
2\ksE - . = (1420 = - (108814 (110241) (6697) (116,938
R-2-DE

+Zf=t-8

R-3-1f

CA-RZER BN T GSIAS el e - san  mSMS moM mm
“E-1f

i D
ERER - - - - - - (04469)  (94,469) (5.808)  (100273)
Afp2EkE - - - (15,820) - - - (15,820) (1376)  (17,19%)
tmhesR - - L T T b (o) (M%) (10469
Wouekes - - - - - e - ® - .
R-E2-1E

+Zf=t-8

288 MWAWE T4 (251428) 100,182 31,947 469 (8996%) 65215 20,564 8,719

The notes on pages 51 to 115 form part of these financial ~#HNE51 8% 1158 2 M5k AR I 5 81

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

AERTRER

for the year ended 31 December 2015 HHZE—ZF—HF+-_A=+—HILFE

[Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA T5I7R)

Operating activities

Cash generated from operations

People’s Republic of China (“PRC")
Enterprise Income Tax paid

Net cash generated from
operating activities

Investing activities

Capital expenditure

Interest received

Proceeds from disposals of property,
plant and equipment

Net cash used in investing activities

Financing activities

Interest paid

Advances from a related party

Repayment to a related party

Repayment of bank loan

Proceeds from issuance of
convertible bonds

Net cash used in financing activities
Net increase/(decrease) in cash

and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at
1 January

Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes

Cash and cash equivalents at
31 December

The notes on pages 51 to 115 form part of these financial

statements.
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14(b) 102,913 75,813
(1,070) =

101,843 75,813

(10,791) (5,292)

393 368

1 5

(10,397) (4,919)

(71,032) (79,211)

6,250 32,000

(6,230) (6,311)

(62,297) (28,244)

50,000 =

(83,309) (81,766)

8,137 (10,872)

46,032 56,993

(1,466) (89)

14(a) 52,703 46,032
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS R AR B EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LAETTHIR + SAEAERIN)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"), which collective
term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA™), accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These consolidated financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”). A summary of the significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for
the current accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Note 1(c) provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application of
these developments to the extent that they are relevant
to the Group for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2015 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis.

1 EARSHEE

(a)

(b)

ERRRARDA
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS ER AR P

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LA TTHIR + BAEAERIN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 1 BEASHBEEE)
(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements (b) BB RZFEHEEZ)
(continued)

As disclosed in note 22(b), the Group expects to incur
non-operating cash outflows of $168,281,000 within one
year, being (i) repayment of bank loans of $59,680,000
in December 2016; (ii) repayment of convertible bonds
of $50,000,000 payable on demand as at 31 December
2015; and (iii) payment of interests of $58,601,000
payable quarterly in arrears. In respect of the convertible
bonds, as disclosed in note 16(d), the Group was in
breach of the financial covenants under the subscription
agreement of convertible bonds relating to the Group’s
consolidated net asset value. Accordingly, the bond
holder has the right at any time by notice to the Group to
require the convertible bonds to be immediately repaid.
Subsequent to the balance sheet date, the Group has
obtained consent from the bond holder to revise the
financial covenants to reduce the level of consolidated net
asset value that the Group is required to maintain. The
Group is in the process of formalising the revision of the
financial covenants through entering into a supplementary
agreement with the bond holder. With the revised
covenants, the Group expects to repay the convertible
bonds by its original due date, which is December 2016.
The Group will be unable to repay these bank loans,
convertible bonds and interests in full when they fall due
unless it is able to generate sufficient net cash inflows
from its operations and/or other sources, since as at
31 December 2015, the Group only had cash and cash
equivalents of $52,703,000.

The directors have been taking various initiatives to
improve the Group's operating cash flows, which include:

— implementing various strategies to improve the
Group's storage, warehousing and transshipment
income to generate additional operating cash
inflows;

—  putting extra efforts on the collection of trade
debtors to improve the debtors turnover days; and

— actively and regularly reviewing its capital structure
and sourcing additional capital by issuing bonds or
new shares, where appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT $R AR P

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LATTHIR + BEEAERRSIN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 1 BEARGBER(E)
(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements (b) BISHRRZEAREEE)
(continued)
In addition, the group entered into a five-year crude oil N REBR —ZE—RFAA

supply agreement with Unipec Asia Company Limited
("UNIPEC Asia”, the trading arm of SINOPEC who is
one of the largest crude oil buyers in the world) in May
2015. Under the crude oil supply agreement, the Group
will supply UNIPEC Asia with crude oil up to 15 million
metric tons for the first contract year (2016), and up to
25 million metric tons for each subsequent contract year.
The directors expect the crude oil supply agreement will
generate additional operating cash inflows to support the
Group'’s liquidity needs.

As part of its going concern assessment, the Group
has carried out a review of its cash flow forecast and
concluded that material uncertainties exist regarding
the Group’s ability to successfully implement the above
initiatives and therefore the achievability of the forecast.

These facts and circumstances indicate the existence of
material uncertainties which may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and, therefore, it may be unable to realise its assets and
discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business.

Based on the directors’ intentions and the cash flow
forecast mentioned above, the directors are of the opinion
that it is appropriate to prepare the Group’s financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2015 on a
going concern basis. Should the Group not be able to
continue to operate as a going concern, adjustments
would have to be made to write down the value of
assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide for
further liabilities which might arise and to reclassify non-
current assets and non-current liabilities as current assets
and current liabilities respectively. The effect of these
adjustments has not been reflected in these financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS ER AR P

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LA TTHIR + BAEAERIN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 1 EASTEER(E)
(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements (b) BIBHRZEREEE)
(continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of
making the judgements about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty
are discussed in note 2.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS R AR MTRE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LATTHIR + BEEAERRSIN)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(9]

(d)

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued the following amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting
period of the Group:

—  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle

—  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period. Impacts of the adoption of the
amended HKFRSs are discussed below:

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle
and 2011-2013 Cycle

These two cycles of annual improvements contain
amendments to nine standards with consequential
amendments to other standards. Among them, HKAS 24,
Related party disclosures has been amended to expand the
definition of a “related party” to include a management
entity that provides key management personnel services
to the reporting entity, and to require the disclosure of
the amounts incurred for obtaining the key management
personnel services provided by the management entity.
These amendments do not have an impact on the Group'’s
related party disclosures as the Group does not obtain
key management personnel services from management
entities.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. When assessing whether the Group
has power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and
other parties) are considered.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS ER AR P

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LA TTHIR + BAEAERIN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 1
(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)

BEXGHEKE)
(d) MIBARRFZRER(E)

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised
gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group can elect to
measure any non-controlling interests either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of
the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated balance sheet within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity shareholders of
the Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of
the Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
income statement and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total
profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the
year between non-controlling interests and the equity
shareholders of the Company. Loans from holders of non-
controlling interests and other contractual obligations
towards these holders are presented as financial liabilities
in the consolidated balance sheet in accordance with
notes 1(m) or (p) depending on the nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to
the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and
no gain or loss is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS R AR MTRE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LATTHIR + BEEAERRSIN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)

(e)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former subsidiary
at the date when control is lost is recognised at fair value
and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset or, when appropriate, the
cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate
or joint venture.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see note

1(h)).

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see note

1(h)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour,
the initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of
dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site
on which they are located, and an appropriate proportion
of production overheads and borrowing costs (see note

1(t).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in
profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS ER AR P

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LA TTHIR + BAEAERIN)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e)

(f)

(9)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their residual value,
if any, using the straight-line method over their estimated
useful lives as follows:

—  Buildings 30 years
— Dock and storage facilities 5-30 years
—  Office equipment 5-10 years
— Motor vehicles 5-10 years

— Leasehold improvements Over the term of the lease
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and
its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated
at cost less accumulated amortisation (where the estimated
useful life is finite) and impairment losses (see note 1(h)).
Amortisation of club memberships is charged to profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives
of 17 to 20 years.

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed
annually.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific
asset or assets for an agreed period of time in return for
a payment or a series of payments. Such a determination
is made based on an evaluation of the substance of
the arrangement and is regardless of whether the
arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS R AR MTRE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LATTHIR + BEEAERRSIN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(g) Leased assets (continued)

)

(i)

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the Group are classified as operating leases, except
that land held for own use under an operating
lease, the fair value of which cannot be measured
separately from the fair value of a building situated
thereon at the inception of the lease, is accounted
for as being held under a finance lease, unless the
building is also clearly held under an operating lease.
For these purposes, the inception of the lease is
the time that the lease was first entered into by the
Group, or taken over from the previous lessee.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases
are charged to profit or loss in equal instalments
over the accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives
received are recognised in profit or loss as an integral
part of the aggregate net lease payments made.
Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in
the accounting period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating
lease is amortised on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS ER AR P

[Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (WAZEITHIR

SAZEAERIN)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 1 EXEHEEKE)
(h) Impairment of assets (h) BERE
(i) Impairment of receivables (i) EWFIERE

Current and non-current receivables that are stated
at cost or amortised cost are reviewed at each
balance sheet date to determine whether there is
objective evidence of impairment. Objective evidence
of impairment includes observable data that comes
to the attention of the Group about one or more of
the following loss events:

—  significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
and

—  significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor.

If any such evidence exists, the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition of these
assets), where the effect of discounting is material.
This assessment is made collectively where these
financial assets share similar risk characteristics,
such as similar past due status, and have not been
individually assessed as impaired. Future cash flows
for financial assets which are assessed for impairment
collectively are based on historical loss experience for
assets with credit risk characteristics similar to the
collective group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS R AR MTRE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LATTHIR + BEEAERRSIN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Impairment of assets (continued)

)

(i)

Impairment of receivables (continued)

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
linked objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised, the impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss. A reversal of an
impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s carrying
amount exceeding that which would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade debtors and
bills receivable included within trade and other
receivables, whose recovery is considered doubtful
but not remote. In this case, the impairment losses
for doubtful debts are recorded using an allowance
account. When the Group is satisfied that recovery
is remote, the amount considered irrecoverable
is written off against trade debtors and bills
receivable directly and any amounts held in the
allowance account relating to that debt are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously charged
to the allowance account are reversed against the
allowance account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are recognised in profit
or loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at each balance sheet date to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired
or an impairment loss previously recognised no
longer exists or may have decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment;

— interests in land held for own use under
operating leases;

— intangible assets;
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R AR TRE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LA TTHIR + BAEAERIN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

non-current prepayments; and

investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
balance sheet.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using the pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. Where an asset does not generate
cash inflows largely independent of those
from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a
cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units
are allocated to reduce the carrying amount of
the assets in the unit (or group of units) on a
pro rata basis, except that the carrying value of
an asset will not be reduced below its individual
fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable)
or value in use (if determinable).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS R AR MTRE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LATTHIR + BEEAERRSIN)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h)

0]

()

(k)

Impairment of assets (continued)
(ii) Impairment of other assets (continued)
—  Reversal of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount.
A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to the profit
or loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

Consumable parts

Consumable parts held for repair and maintenance
purposes by the Group are stated at cost less any provision
for obsolescence.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised
at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts (see note 1(h)), except
where the receivables are interest-free loans made to
related parties without any fixed repayment terms or
the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such
cases, the receivables are stated at cost less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts.

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds that can be converted to equity share
capital at the option of the holder, where the number of
shares that would be issued on conversion and the value
of the consideration that would be received at that time
do not vary, are accounted for as compound financial
instruments which contain both a liability component and
an equity component.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS ER AR P

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LA TTHIR + BAEAERIN)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k)

U]

(m)

Convertible bonds (continued)

At initial recognition the liability component of the
convertible bonds is measured as the present value of
the future interest and principal payments, discounted
at the market rate of interest applicable at the time of
initial recognition to similar liabilities that do not have
a conversion option. Any excess of proceeds over the
amount initially recognised as the liability component is
recognised as the equity component. Transaction costs
that relate to the issue of a compound financial instrument
are allocated to the liability and equity components in
proportion to the allocation of proceeds.

The liability component is subsequently carried at
amortised cost. The interest expense recognised in profit
or loss on the liability component is calculated using
the effective interest method. The equity component is
recognised in the capital reserve until either the bond is
converted or redeemed.

If the bond is converted, the capital reserve, together with
the carrying amount of the liability component at the time
of conversion, is transferred to share capital and share
premium as consideration for the shares issued. If the
bond is redeemed, the capital reserve is released directly
to retained profits.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at
fair value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are
stated at amortised cost with any difference between
the amount initially recognised and redemption value
being recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings, together with any interest and fees payable,
using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS R AR MTRE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LATTHIR + BEEAERRSIN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(n) Employee benefits

0)

(i)

Short-term employee benefits and contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the year in which the associated services
are rendered by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present
values.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee cost
with a corresponding increase in a share-based
compensation reserve within equity. The fair value is
measured at grant date after taking into account the
terms and conditions upon which the options were
granted. Where the employees have to meet vesting
conditions before becoming unconditionally entitled
to the options, the total estimated fair value of the
share options is spread over the vesting period,
taking into account the probability that the options
will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair value
recognised in prior years is charged/credited to the
profit or loss for the year of the review, unless the
original employee expenses qualify for recognition
as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to the
share-based compensation reserve. On vesting date,
the amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the actual number of options that vest (with
a corresponding adjustment to the share-based
compensation reserve) except where forfeiture is
only due to not achieving vesting conditions that
relate to the market price of the Company’s shares.
The equity amount is recognised in the share-
based compensation reserve until either the option
is exercised (when it is transferred to the share
premium account) or the option expires (when it is
released directly to accumulated losses).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS ER AR P

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LA TTHIR + BAEAERIN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 1 EREHBEGE)
(0) Income tax (o) FiB
Income tax for the year comprises current tax and REF S BIEARRIERE
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current EMIBEERBECZE - A4
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities MIERELHEEENBGBZE
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that M EBRRATER - BEEE

they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in
the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or
forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary differences support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused
tax losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken
into account if they relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse
in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can
be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS R AR MTRE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LATTHIR + BEEAERRSIN)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(o)

Income tax (continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets
and liabilities are those temporary differences arising from
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they
are not part of a business combination) and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the
extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group
controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable
that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future, or in the case of deductible differences, unless it is
probable that they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of
the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at each balance sheet date and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow the related tax benefit to be
utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that
it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on undistributed profits of
investments in subsidiaries, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of temporary differences and it
is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS ER AR P

[Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (WAZEITHIR

1

SAZEAERIN)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(o)

(p)

Income tax (continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the
Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled
or recovered, intend to realise the current tax
assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a
net basis or realise and settle simultaneously.

Other payables

Other payables (including amounts due to related parties)
are initially recognised at fair value and are subsequently
stated at amortised cost unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at
cost.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS R AR MTRE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LATTHIR + BEEAERRSIN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(q) Provisions and contingent liabilities

(r)

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue
is recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i)  Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where
an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the use of the
leased asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised
in profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments receivable.

(i)  Port income is recognised upon performance of the
services.

(iii) Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS ER AR P

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LA TTHIR + BAEAERIN)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(r)

(s)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(iv) Government grants are recognised in the balance
sheet initially when there is reasonable assurance
that they will be received and that the Group will
comply with the conditions attaching to them.
Grants that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as income in profit or loss on
a systematic basis in the same periods in which the
expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate the
Group for the cost of an asset are deducted from the
carrying amount of the asset and consequently are
effectively recognised in profit or loss over the useful
life of the asset by way of reduced depreciation
expense.

Translation of foreign currencies

The functional currencies of the Company and its
subsidiaries in the PRC are Hong Kong dollars and
Renminbi Yuan (“RMB") respectively. The Group adopted
Hong Kong dollars as its presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the balance sheet date. Exchange gains or
losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
dates the fair value was measured.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS R AR MTRE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LATTHIR + BEEAERRSIN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(s) Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

(t)

The results of operations with functional currency other
than Hong Kong dollars are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates approximating the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Balance
sheet items are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
closing exchange rates at the balance sheet date. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
equity in the translation reserve.

On disposal of an operation with functional currency
other than Hong Kong dollars, the cumulative amount
of the exchange differences relating to that operation is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit or
loss on disposal is recognised.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of
a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is
suspended or ceases when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended
use are complete.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS ER AR P

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LA TTHIR + BAEAERIN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 1 EXRETBERE)
(u) Related parties (u) BEAT
(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is (@ MMBITAL BIZZAL
related to the Group if that person: R AT 2B EARE
B -
(i)  has control or joint control over the Group; () FE ek RE B AN &
;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or i)y HAEBFBEEKRNY

=

(iii)y is a member of the key management personnel (i) BAAEBENAE
of the Group or the Group's parent. RANEZEEEREK

E o
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the (b) fWFFE THEMELS - B
following conditions applies: I EEEAEEARE

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the () ZEBHEAASEER
same group (which means that each parent, — 5B zKE R F(B)
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the E= S SE/NCTIE 1= E/NGT
others). PAGES NSNS

Faﬁﬁ sag) ©

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the (i) " XERBEES—EE
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of B R Ak E &
a member of a group of which the other entity is ¥(z %—E%E&E\
a member). NAIZEEETKE

NAZEERRIHE
EhE) -

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same (i) MREBHARBR—F
third party. = HMEERE -

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity vy " REBRFE=FE
and the other entity is an associate of the third BREELE " M3
entity. —BERBRZE=ZTE

BrEtE AE] o

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for (v) HEEAAREE:HE
the benefit of employees of either the Group or SEEHECER
an entity related to the Group. LR B A58 5 3L 8 B

BAERIETEl o

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a (vi) LEE R (a) PRI A
person identified in (a). TSR R o

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant (vii) 7 (@)(i)PTa%k R A %
influence over the entity or is a member of the LWEBBERTEN
key management personnel of the entity (or of NEZERE (TR
a parent of the entity). WRRE)EEERE

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which (viii) It & B8 sk (EfrI 4B AR &=
it is a part, provides key management personnel —EB D HIEK B A Al
services to the group or to the group'’s parent. mZEBEKESFA A

RHFEEEASR
ﬁ% o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS R AR MTRE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LATTHIR + BEEAERRSIN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(u) Related parties (continued)

(v)

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group's most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group's various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products and services,
the nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.

2 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
The critical accounting judgements in applying the Group’s
accounting policies and key sources of estimation uncertainty
are as follows:

(a)

Going concern

As disclosed in note 1(b), the directors have prepared the
financial statements on a going concern basis as they are
of the opinion that the Group has adequate sources of
liquidity to fund the Group’s working capital and to meet
its debt obligations as they become due based on the cash
flow forecast prepared by the directors. Any adverse result
on the actual future cash flow would affect the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LA TTHIR + BAEAERIN)

2

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

(b)

(0

(d)

Impairments

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of assets at each
balance sheet date to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. When indication of impairment
is identified, management prepares discounted future
cash flow to assess the differences between the carrying
amount and value in use and provides for impairment loss.
Any change in the assumptions adopted in the cash flow
forecasts would increase or decrease in the provision of
impairment loss and affect the Group's financial position.

Provision for impairment of trade and other receivables
is assessed and provided based on the management’s
regular review of ageing analysis and evaluation of
collectibility. A considerable level of judgement is exercised
by the directors when assessing the credit worthiness and
past collection history of each individual customer. Any
increase or decrease in the provision would affect the
Group's profit or loss in future years.

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the
assets. The Group reviews the estimated useful lives of
the assets regularly in order to determine the amount of
depreciation expense to be recorded during the reporting
period. The depreciation expense for future periods is
adjusted if there are significant changes from previous
estimation.

Lease classification

Leases are classified as operating leases if the duration
of the arrangement are for less than a major part of
the facilities’ useful lives and the present value of the
minimum payments under the arrangement does not
amount to at least substantially all of the fair value of the
facilities. The conclusion on classification of leases may be
affected if there are significant changes in assumptions
adopted in the estimates of the facilities’ useful lives and
the present value of the minimum payments. The Group
uses all readily available information in estimating the
useful lives and present value of minimum payments.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT $R AR P

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LATTHIR + BEEAERRSIN)

2 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued) 2 S HET R G (E)
(e) Provision for taxation (e) FIEEE

Judgment is required in determining the provision for
income taxes. There are transactions during the ordinary
course of business for which calculations of the ultimate
tax provision is uncertain. The final outcomes are subject
to uncertainties and resulting liabilities may exceed
provisions or tax losses may not be carried forward.

Recognition of deferred tax assets, which principally
related to tax loses, depends on the management’s
expectation of taxable profit that will be available against
which the tax losses can be utilised. Any difference of the
actual outcome and estimated profit would affect the
utilisation of deferred tax assets.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(@) Revenue

The principal activities of the Group are provision of
terminal, storage, warehousing and transhipment services
for oil and petrochemical products.

Revenue represents port income and storage,
warehousing and transshipment income. The amount of
each significant category recognised in revenue during the
year is as follows:

BEEMSHAGBRSZFELH
B - RAEEBEETEHAA
RREEVBL T EELRS °
BRRERXITEERRZE -
BELZABERESNEEL
TRABBAERTEEE -

BEERAEE (X ERBIARIR
B 2 ERABRREEEMRA
BRREERETEEZHARF
FERBUE A 2 TR - BFRAERE
(CEip AR RO E 2 S ok--7
ERTEHABENER -

WA R 2R &
(a) WA

AEE 2 EBXRBRRE A HM
ALEREE - ffF - RERE
iR

WAEEDWARETTF - BEM
BHIWA - FARKARNERZ
EEXERISBIT

Storage, warehousing and
transshipment income
Port income & E A

In 2015, the Group has no customer (2014: one
customer) with whom transactions have exceeded 10%
of the Group’s revenues. In 2014, revenue from provision
of storage and transshipment services to this customer,
including revenues from entities which are known to the
Group to be under common control with this customer,
amounted to approximately $24 million. Details of
concentrations of credit risk arising from the Group’s
major customers are set out in note 22(a).

frfr - REREH KA

218,166 206,686
5,037 4,820
223,203 211,506

R=-ZT—1F  AEETERF

—ENF F—REF)EAR
EEHETZ R PEBAAEEBRA
210% c R=ZZT—U%E - [@3%E
EPRETTFREGREAEZ
WA BEAEEEAZZER
FHERERI 2 BB ZBAR
#492,4008 T - AAKEEXER
FEAEERBREPZFIT @ #
RHIFE22(@) °
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LA TTHIR + BAEAERIN)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 3
(b) Segment reporting

WAR D EB®RE (&)
(b) ZDEEHE

The Group manages its businesses by entities, which
are organised by geography. In a manner consistent
with the way in which information is reported internally
to the Group’s most senior executive management for
the purposes of resource allocation and performance

AEBEBBIZWRE D 2 ERE
BHXR - REERAKEK
SETHERABNFERER
NAEERMHERR —B2T
2 SR BRI 2 DA R 18 AT R

assessment, the Group has identified the following two EEP o AREE W EA GHEK
reportable segments. No operating segments have been EOED - AR T3 2 AT RS
aggregated to form the following reportable segments. B o

0]

Xiao Hu Island Terminal (“XHIT"”): this segment
represents the Group’s provision of terminal, storage,
warehousing and transshipment activities carried out
in Panyu, the PRC.

Dongzhou International Terminal (“DZIT"): this
segment represents the Group's provision of
terminal, storage and transshipment activities carried
out in Dongguan, the PRC.

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the
Group’s senior executive management monitors
the results, assets and liabilities attributable to each
reportable segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible, intangible assets
and current assets with the exception of investments
in subsidiaries and other corporate assets. Segment
liabilities include other payables and accruals

- SIREHBE(NEAL

B : ka#BRieEEBR
TEERLE CREMHB
BITF REREHC
ET

- REMERBER(EMAL

B : wa#BRieEEBR
EPI%“”“*Z?ETAE%
CNSEASELL a3

() 2H%E BERER
AAEBORAERRERDED
BERME - AEEES
BITHREBEASRUATE
EERZAIRE D BRI
ZEE BRENAE:

DHEEBEMEBEELE
E BEEEMRDE
E - EBETEERRWNELRF
ZEREREMRAREE °

attributable to the individual segments and bank DEBERES D EBEMN
borrowings managed directly by the segments. ZEHJJEH RIENMETIRE
AR HEEER

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable

ZﬁEﬁE%’X @

WARXHEL2RARE

segments with reference to revenue generated DEWAEEZWARZE

by those segments and the expenses incurred by DEFTEELZ X H &M—r
those segments or which otherwise arise from the DEEMBEEMELE ZIT
depreciation or amortisation of assets attributable to EdEESEMORER]

those segments.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS R AR MTRE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LATTHIR + BEEAERRSIN)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued)

0}

Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued)
The measure used for reporting segment profit/
(loss) is “profit/(loss) before taxation”, i.e. “adjusted
earnings/(losses) before taxes”. To arrive at “profit/
(loss) before taxation”, the Group's earnings/
(losses) are further adjusted for items not specifically
attributed to individual segments, such as head office
or corporate administration costs.

In addition to receiving segment information
concerning profit/(loss) before taxation, management
is provided with segment information concerning
revenue, interest income and finance costs.

Information regarding the Group's reportable
segments provided to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance
for the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 is
set out below.

2015
“E-nf

$'000
Fr

Reportable segment  AFEREDHBA

3 WAERZ

BRE(E)

(b) ZDEHE(E)

0]

DzIT
RNBILE

2015

DEEE  BEREEE)
BE ¥R > &0 A, (&8 ) PR
RABZ AR BB AR
M, (E1R) | - B R&tHE
A2 K AHERF (&
B)] - RERIBHRAG
M(BR) D AREZR
M (B8R L B EH
BER B2 B (A4
HABITHEKA) fEH T
# o

197 B B AT
(B18) Z HHER - &
8 T R G B -
A BB B A 2 5
SER -

BE_Z2—HRFK_ZF
—mE+=—A=+—H1t
FE ARRETAEE
EREBITHEREABNUS
RERRTIHDIERIRZ
REBEAREDBERH
BT »

Total
@t
2015

2014 2014

“E-1fF —Z-N& —E-F1F —ZT-F

$'000
Fr

§'000
T

$'000
Fr

§'000
T

revenue 110,318 104,094 112,885 107,412 223,203 211,506
Reportable segment  FI3RiE 2k HiAT

profit/(loss) before wfl/ (B518)

taxation 11,518 2,980 (79,743)  (86,734)  (68,225)  (83,754)
Interest income FIEUA 306 146 77 91 383 237
Finance costs BT 11,057 13,592 59,599 65,550 70,656 79,142
Reportable segment A& D EEE

assets 1,340,190 1,475,931 1,083,813 1,245,754 2,424,003 2,721,685
Reportable segment  AIRENHERE

liabilities 1,209,914 1355950 983,785 1,057,807 2,193,699 2,413,757
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BAFSTTHIR + BAERERRSN)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 3 WARSHHE(E)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) DEHwEE)
(i) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, (i) AHEDHBWA ~ B -
profit or loss, assets and liabilities EERBEZHIR

Revenue A
Reportable segment revenue BESEER: TN 223,203 211,506
Consolidated revenue LAEA 223,203 211,506
Loss i}
Reportable segment loss A FRE D B R A B IR

before taxation (68,225) (83,754)
Unallocated other AR E AR

(expenses)/income (X)) zs (193) 75
Unallocated head office and AOBBIH R AT H

corporate expenses (29,113) (31,812)
Consolidated loss before taxation 434K TEE (97,531) (115,491)
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets AREDHEE 2,424,003 2,721,685
Elimination of inter-segment R EH D B 2 FEUGRIE

receivables (966,691) (1,031,709)

1,457,312 1,689,976

Unallocated head office and AOBLAEE R AR EE

corporate assets 38,411 20,355
Consolidated total assets IREREE 1,495,723 1,710,331
Liabilities i=Cit
Reportable segment liabilities AERED I EE 2,193,699 2,413,757
Elimination of inter-segment SR o BB 2 PR S FUE

payables (966,691) (1,031,709)

1,227,008 1,382,048

Unallocated head office and AOBEIT R AT EE

corporate liabilities 182,936 125,504
Consolidated total liabilities LERRBE 1,409,944 1,507,552
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BA RS R AR MTRE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LATTHIR + BEEAERRSIN)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued)
(iii) Geographic information

The following table sets out information about the
geographical location of (i) the Group’s revenue from
external customers and (ii) the Group's property,
plant and equipment, interests in land held for own
use under operating leases, intangible assets, non-
current prepayments (“specified non-current assets”).
The geographical location of customers is based on
the location at which the services were provided. The
geographical location of the specified non-current
assets is based on the physical location of the asset.

WA D BEHE(F)
D EE]E ()
(i) HEEH

TREBBRLENA
SEEIEELAFZH
AR(DAEE 2% - B
FER&E RELLHO
HiEARZz LR &
WEE - ERBENREA
(EEFRBEE]) E
w2 B - BPER
B PATE f5% AR 75 2 b 36 73 1K
B EEFRRDEEME
MR AEEZ BERME
RERIKIE -

Hong Kong
PRC (excluding
Hong Kong)

OTHER INCOME

RE(TEREE)

Revenues from Specified
external customers non-current assets
INERE B TS Z A EEFRBEE
2015
$000
T
- - 3,141 3,606
223,203 211,506 1,342,023 1,555,775
223,203 211,506 1,345,164 1,559,381
4 Htas

Interest income

Government grants

Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Net foreign exchange gain/(loss)

Others

FEUA 393 368

BB 253 1,177
HEWE - BERREREE

(31) (104)

bE H e, (E518 ) ¥ 58 3,123 1)

HAth 2,655 2,007

6,393 3,427
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BAFSTTHIR + BAERERRSN)

5 LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 5 BREAIES
Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging: BrEE AT E B T & HI % T2 Z 18K =
2

(a) Finance costs (a) BIFERAR
Interest on bank loans RITEHFE 70,656 79,165
(b) Staff costs* (b) B IRA*
Contributions to defined )€ BB RGRIRET &)
contribution retirement plans VEH 2 3k 3,013 2,455
Salaries, wages and other benefits W - TEREMER 59,012 57,577
62,025 60,032
(c) Other items () HmtEH
Amortisation b
— land lease premium —+HF4E 7,022 7,114
— intangible assets —BILEE 203 204
Depreciation e 118,417 119,695
Auditor’s remuneration 1% 25 B 7 M
- audit services — B RTS 1,358 1,358
— review services — MR 380 380
Operating lease charges on MERSEHEER*
properties* 4,201 4,396
*  Staff costs include $1,800,000 (2014: $1,800,000) relating to * BIRABRHENGEERS
operating lease charges on properties, which amount is also % 51,800,000 7T ( =& — [0 £ :
included in the respective total amount disclosed separately 1,800,0007T) * 3R IaT AR Lt
above. ERIHEN S BLRTEF -
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BA RS R AR MTRE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LATTHIR + BEEAERRSIN)

6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME 6
STATEMENT
(a) Income tax in the consolidated income statement

(b)

(ii)

represents:

Current tax — PRC Enterprise

Income Tax

Provision for the year

Under-provision in respect of prior

years

Deferred tax — origination and reversal
of temporary differences (note 17(b))

Notes:

ENSABEIE — B3
FRi&#

FARE
BEFERETE

BEERHIE - EREEERE
EEAE R B (MI5E17(b))

No Hong Kong Profits Tax was provided for the year ended

31 December 2015 as the Group sustained a loss for Hong
Kong Profits Tax purposes for the year (2014: Nil).

The applicable tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries for the year

ended 31 December 2015 was 25% (2014: 25%).

Loss before taxation

Notional tax on loss before tax,
calculated at the rates applicable in
the tax jurisdictions concerned

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses

Tax effect of non-taxable income

Tax effect of unused tax losses not

recognised
Under-provision in prior years
Others

Actual tax expense/(credit)

Reconciliation between tax expense/(credit) and
accounting loss at applicable tax rates:

BRI RTE R

REBAR BB REE
BERE(R 2 TR R BRFR AT
BBt E 2 B ERE

TAMEIN S 2 B &

IERFHUA 2 TR TG &

RERZAFBAFIBEEE
2SR

BAEFEREETR

Hity

ERHIEMS (%)

REBERPZAEHR

() REBBRPZAEBIE -

43

463

43

463

2,699

(588)

2,742

(125)

B =E -

iy BEZZT—

A JJ:iE
mn
B &tl#ﬁiﬁf%‘fﬁl
B =T —

nn\

(i EBHEZZ

HIEFE - EPIMTE
AR EF25% (=

25%) °

AE+=ZRA=+—
HEBMEH M
AEERFRELE
m+
PY4F :

—AET A=
A2
—m

(b) ZERABREZBIAEMY
(ER)EEHEEZHRDT

(97,531) (115,491)
(22,037) (26,039)

2,443 1,753

(2) (21)

22,262 24,288

43 =

33 (106)

2,742 (125)
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7 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 7 EEME
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) BIEEB A EH E383(1) & & A7
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the (BRREEN=ER) RO F2BHE
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of JEEMESHT

Directors) Regulation are as follows:

2015 —E-RF
Salaries,

allowances  Retirement

Directors’ and benefits scheme

fee in kind contributions

HE - 2R EIRGHE

EEwme Bk H}

$'000 $'000 $'000

T Fr FTr

Executive directors BITES

David An HE - 4,860 60 4,920
Fung Chi Kwan, Nicholas B - 975 18 993
Liu Zhijun 2= - 975 60 1,035
Zhang Lei R - 1,209 18 1,227

Independent non-executive B ¥ TES

directors
Li Wai Keung e 120 - - 120
Chan Chun Wai, Tony fRIRE 120 — — 120
Cheung Siu Yuen, Rose =N 120 - - 120

360 8,019 156 8,535
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7

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

7 ESME(E)

2014 —E—ME
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’  and benefits scheme
fee in kind  contributions
5 - =R R RRGTE
EE ik B N
$'000 $'000 $'000
T T T
Executive directors HITES
David An iz - 4,912 60 4,972
Fung Chi Kwan, Nicholas ks - 975 17 992
Liu Zhijun BEE - 975 60 1,035
Zhang Lei R - 1,209 17 1,226
Independent non-executive E I IEHITES
directors
Li Wai Keung EX 120 - - 120
Chan Chun Wai, Tony R & 120 = = 120
Cheung Siu Yuen, Rose =) 120 - - 120
360 8,071 154 8,585

During the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, no
amount was paid or payable by the Company to the directors
or any of the five highest paid individuals set out in note 8
below as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or
as compensation for loss of office. There was no arrangement
under which a director waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the years.

BE_TRER-_F-OF+_A
=t+—RIFEHE ARAHED
NRENERSL T XM ESAT A%
REFHMA TR EMALEE - AR
SIRFMBARNEE S IMAKE RS L
TERBERIME - £ MBI LR
UHEEREXRZREEAME -
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INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, four (2014: four) are directors of the Company whose
emoluments are disclosed in note 7. The emolument in respect
of the remaining individual is as follow:

REHMAL
RASERARSFMALH - EF
& (ZF—MF : @B)ALR/ER
AEE  HMSRXME7HE - 8T
—RAATRBNEIT ¢

SN & E Ath A2 F
Contributions to defined contribution — FEZEHFERRETEIZ 3k
retirement plans

Salaries and other benefits

The emolument of the remaining individual with the highest
emoluments is within the following band:

819 768
18 33
837 801

FEDEFMA L ZME N F AT

G

Number of individuals

AE

Nil — $1,000,000 Z—1,000,0007T

LOSS PER SHARE

Basic and diluted loss per share

The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share is based
on the loss attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of
the Company of $94,469,000 (2014: $108,814,000) and the
weighted average of 3,732,638,000 ordinary shares (2014:
3,732,638,000 ordinary shares) in issue during the year.

The diluted loss per share is the same as the basic loss per share
as there were no dilutive potential ordinary shares in existence
during the year ended 31 December 2015 and 2014.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LATTHIR + BEEAERRSIN)

10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 10 Y% BEESZE
(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount (a) FREEYHER
Interests in
land held
for own use
Dock and under
storage Office Motor Leasehold operating
Buildings facilities  equipment vehicles - improvements Sub-total leases
it
VL
BER KEERZ
FERE  WOERG RE RENEES it iR
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
i T i i i i
(note Kzt (b))
Cost: B
At 1 January 2015 R=F-1%-A-A 55,081 1,949,737 7,208 20,501 1,892 2,034,419 325,160 2,359,579
Exchange adjustments  [E 5 3% (3,215) (114,081) (386) (1,109) - (118,791) (18,979) (137,770)
Additions NE - 6,386 314 352 - 7,052 - 7,052
Disposals e - (1,976) (52) (177) - (2,205) - (2,205)

At31 December 2015 R-E-T&E
+-A=1+-H 51,866 1,840,066 7,084 19,567 1,802 1,920,475 306,181 2,226,656

Accumulated ZHTER
depreciation and #H.

amortisation:
At 1 January 2015 RZZ-R%-A-A 13,809 728,624 4,857 17,021 335 764,652 52,167 816,819
Exchange adjustments (& 7 :5% (881) (47,227) (276) (943) - (49,327) (3,338) (52,665)
Charge for the year FENE 1,785 114,495 601 1,220 316 118,417 1022 125439
Wiitten back on disposals 7\ ERER - (1,968) (46) (159) - (211) - (2113)

At31December 2015 R-E-T%
+-A=t1-H 14,713 793,924 5,136 17,145 651 831,569 55,851 887,420

Net book value: BEFE:
At31 December 2015 R-E-T&E
t-B=1-H 37,153 1,046,142 1,948 240 1241 1,088,906 250,330 1,339,236
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10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 10 ¥ - BERSZEE)
(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount (continued) (a) EREEYERGE)

INEE

[and held

for own use

Dock and under

storage Office Motor Leasehold operating

Buildings faclities ~ equipment vehicles  improvements Sub-total leases

(note ff3¥ (b)
Cost: A
At 1 January 2014 R-Z-mE-A-A 55,270 1,946,284 1,157 21,230 1,892 2,031,833 326,276 2,358,109
Exchange adustments  [E34 58 (189) (6,619) @) (1) - 690 (1,116 (8,016)
Additions NE - 10,178 81 3N - 10,580 - 10,580
Disposals fe - (106) ®) (980) - (1,094) - (1,094)

At 31 December 2014 R=ZF-M&
+=fA=t-H 55,081 1,949,737 7208 20,501 1892 2034419 325,160 2,359,579

Accumulated ZHTER
depreciation and #i

amortisation:

M1laniay 2014 H-F-mE-A-F 12,032 615,681 ant 15,699 19 647,648 5177 692,825
Bichange adjustments (£ 3¢ 3% (3 (1,619 (10 (44) - (1,706) (124) (1,830)
Charge for theyear ~ £E#7E 1810 114,658 657 2,254 316 119,695 7114 126,809
Witten back on disposals H\(HEEEE - %) ) (882) - (985) - (985)

At31December 2014 R=E-MF
+ZA=t-H 13,809 728624 4857 17,027 335 764,652 52,167 816,819

Net ook value: FEFE:
At31 December 2014  RZZ-ME

T-A=1-H 1,21 121113 2,351 3474 1,557 1,269,767 212,993 1,542,760
(b) The Group was granted the rights to use the land by the (b) ZREEHEH BTN THEAEE T T3t
PRC authorities with lease terms of 50 years. The net FR#E - HEHRS0F - RZF
book value as at 31 December 2015 includes an amount —hFETZA=+—HZEREF
of $6,727,000 (2014: $7,145,000) which is disclosed as ENBIE£%86,727,0007T (=
interest in land held for own use under operating leases —PU4F : 7,145,00070) © ERR
under current assets. PEEP ZBBREEEERER

Mz L IR -
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10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 10 Y% BERSZEE)
(c) The analysis of net book value of properties is as () MERMFEZDWAT :
follow:

1

In PRC:
Medium-term leases

Representing:

Buildings

Interest in land held for own use
under operating leases

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

APE :
FR EAE 4Y 287,483 314,265
a8g:
gF 37,153 41,272
BB EHEREERZ

tTHbAER 250,330 272,993

287,483 314,265

11 EREE

Club membership
2%

Cost: RN

At 1 January »w—A—H 3,828 3,829

Exchange adjustments b 5, 38 B (33) (1)

At 31 December W+=—_HA=+—H 3,795 3,828

Accumulated amortisation: 2Ty -

At 1 January R—A—H 1,620 1,416

Exchange adjustments PE W A% (16) =

Charge for the year FEE 203 204

At 31 December N+=—_HA=+—H 1,807 1,620

Net book value: BRMEFE :

At 31 December ®w+=—A=+—H 1,988 2,208
The amortisation charge for the year is included in RAEEZHEERG AZEERER
“administrative expenses” in the consolidated income [TTERER % -

statement.
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12

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of
the Group. The class of shares held is ordinary shares unless

otherwise indicated.

Name of subsidiary

WEAFER

Guangdong Petro-Chemicals
Company Limited
BRI IERAR

Oriental Point International Limited

%E%ﬁﬁﬁ/&ﬁ]

Timeslink Development Limited

BRERARAT

Union Petro-Chemicals (BVI)
Company Limited
EREBRRGCIERAR

Guangdong (Panyu) Petrochemical
Storage & Transportation Ltd.
("GD (Panyu)")

B (B8) At TEERE
BRAR ([88 (B8) )

ENPERG IRRERAR
(MhEafel)

Guangzhou Zhongshui Petrochemical
Development Limited

RETRMERALERERAR
(TRMERR )

Dongguan Dongzhou International
Petrochemical Storage Limited

Note:

Place of
operation

B

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
&b
Hong Kong

BB

Hong Kong
BA

PRC

e

PRC
i

PRC
i

12 REIBARZRE
UTIERRBEF

Place of Particulars of
incorporation/ issued and
establishment paid up capital
ML/ BERTREAR
RLZ% RAFE
Hong Kong 20,000,000 shares
B 20,000,000
Hong Kong 1,000,000 shares
B 1,000,0008%
Hong Kong 10,000 shares
B 1,000,000
British Virgin 100 shares of

Islands US$1 each
KBRLEE 100REREEIZT
PRC RMB220,000,000
i AE#220,000,0007C
PRC RMB4,820,800
HE AEKH4,820,8007C
PRC RMB374,110,000
i AR%374,110,00070

GD (Panyu) is a sino-foreign equity joint venture company and

FRiEA{L and EEMEIER are limited liability companies. The
official names of FfEA1E and HMEIER are in Chinese and
the English translation are for reference only.
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SAREE L

BESXABENTEMBARNFE

BRIERBHA
AR

Attributable
equity interest
ik iRE
Directly Indirectly
B# ik
- 100%
- 100%
100% =
100% =
- 92%
- 92%
- 92%
I

BRI Z B KR 5

Principal activities

TEXB

Provision of
administrative services

R TBURTS

Inactive

TER

Provision of administrative
services

RATBIRY

Investment holding

RARK

Provision of terminal,
storage, warehousing and
transshipment services

RATEE 57 RER
HaR

Investment holding

RARR

Provision of terminal,
storage and
transshipment services

RS - By KBRS

BE(HFBE)E—RTIHEGER

A ARALEEERMNEERES

BEREER

8 o FRRALREM

B 2 EXERARX » HXE
EEHRSE -
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12

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

12

The following table lists out the information relating to GD
(Panyu), the only subsidiary of the Group which has material
non-controlling interest (“NCI”). The summarised financial
information presented below represents the amounts before

any inter-company elimination.

RIE R B2 Em(E)

TR AKEME—FHEEHER
e ([ SRR DB AR — &
B(ERINER - TXMEI 27
BRI ER AR HEA 2R -

NCI percentage
Non-current assets
Current assets

Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Net assets

Carrying amount of NCI

Revenue

Loss for the year

Total comprehensive income
Loss allocated to NCI

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities

ESEIR G Fadnall]
FRBEE
mBEE
nEE=YE
FRBEE
BEFE
FEER S AR (E

Yz

FREE

EER AR

DB T IRER R 2 BB

LR EBHERS
BEEDERS
REEDFERS

8% 8%
1,358,841 1,557,624
134,965 181,695
(99,249) (114,192)
(1,137,503) (1,278,324)
257,054 346,803
20,564 27,744
222,014 210,332
(72,552) (81,895)
(69,505) (82,242)
(5,804) (6,552)
139,825 124,714
(10,340) (5,030)
(139,558) (110,744)
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13 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

13 EZRHMERREA

Trade debtors B S EINERFR
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts B RIEBREME
(note 13(b)) (FfFEE13(b))

TR FRIR K A e YRR

Prepayments and other receivables

The amount of the prepayments and other receivables
expected to be recovered or recognised as expense after more
than one year is $Nil (2014: $920,000). Apart from these,
the prepayments and other receivables are expected to be
recovered or recognised as expense within one year.

(a) Ageing analysis
As at balance sheet date, the ageing analysis of
trade debtors (which are included in trade and other
receivables), based on the invoice date and net of
allowance for doubtful debts, is as follows:

63,537 172,778
(6,227) (121,704)
57,310 51,074

4,290 11,606
61,600 62,680

TEER —F R KB ERABR 2B
NREREMERRIBEAZTL(ZE
—PO4 : 920,0007T) ° KRtk 24N - 78
RFRIE R E A R FIETE B R —
A EISHERLSER °

(@) BRERDM
REEH  BREEREHREN
BRERBEZE HEWFIRE
(FIAE 5 K H A EHKRIAE) 2 AR
BT

—fEAR

—fEAA EEREA R
MIEA A EB=1EA A
=EANRE

Within 1 month
Over 1 month but within 2 months
Over 2 months but within 3 months
Over 3 months

Subject to negotiation, credit is generally only available
to major customers with well-established trading records.
The Group allows an average credit period of 30 days to
its trade customers. Further details on the Group’s credit
policy are set out in note 22(a).
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21,536 23,240
1,684 2,636
1,206 2,300
32,884 22,898
57,310 51,074
BRI RRERME - BRIRH—A
ERTARURZEHIEIER
F - AKBETESEFF1530

RZBHRY - BEAKREEER
R E— T FBENMEE22()
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13 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(b)

Impairment of trade debtors

Impairment losses in respect of trade debtors are recorded
using an allowance account unless the Group is satisfied
that recovery of the amount is remote, in which case
the impairment loss is written off against trade debtors
directly (see note 1(h)(i)).

A PRC subsidiary of the Company and SINOPEC
Guangdong Oil Products Company (the “Lessee”)
entered into an oil storage tanks lease agreement (the
“Lease Agreement”) in 2004. During the year ended 31
December 2011, a request was made by the Lessee for
its unilateral termination of the Lease Agreement since
1 July 2011 because of changes in the Lessee’s business
operating conditions.

In this connection, the Group ceased to recognise revenue
from the Lease Agreement from 1 July 2011. Further,
there was accrued rental income receivable arising from
initial rent free period of the Lease Agreement (included
within trade receivables) of RMB90,795,000 (equivalent
to $115,091,000). Full impairment loss was recognised
on the accrued rental income receivable during the year
ended 31 December 2011. The Group did not claim tax
deduction regarding such impairment loss and recognise
the income tax paid of RMB15,065,000 (equivalent to
$19,674,000) for the year ended 31 December 2011 as
tax recoverable as the dispute with the Lessee was not
resolved.

On 11 June 2012, the Group applied for an arbitration to
the Guangzhou Arbitration Commission (the “Arbitration
Commission”) in accordance with the specific terms and
conditions of the Lease Agreement in respect of the
unilateral termination of the Lease Agreement by the
Lessee.

13 EZRHMEWHEGE)
(b) EZEYIRFZRE

B 5 USRI R E R E A B
ARADER - MEMRASKEREE R
HZ WEERE  AIEREES
JRE M B (R BRTRE 1 (h) (i)

AATE— KB BB AT R
L ER A D A S (AT
BIEEADR-_EEMEES
TERBERBEHE((RER
#) BE-T——®+=A8
=t—BIEE - ARARLRG
BERBHETAERR T
——F - BRRIEER

A
==
R °

gt AEBBE T ——F A
—HREFEIERAERRER K
A Rifn - DBERBE =

e A mELEN R EK
WA (BEEE S ERER
M) A R #90,795,000 7T (8 &
115,091,000 ) ° 72 & A
EURASWARBEE_—T——F
+—A=t—HIFEZ2HEER
AREEE - AREAR AL
A AREER - ANEE W EIR LR
BEEEREFRRBIERR
UERREBEE—_E——F+_ A
= t+—HIFEBREMAE
i A R #15,065,0007T (HEE R
19,674,000 ) {EA R YR EIFHIE o

RZE——FA+—H &%
BRI E ek < FFE Rk M5
HrREMNmHERZES([HHRE
Bg | )piAAAE T EERKLE
THE W ERAFME -
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13 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(b)

Impairment of trade debtors (continued)

On 5 March 2014, the Group received an arbitration
ruling (the “Arbitration Ruling”) from the Arbitration
Commission. The Arbitration Commission ordered that
a one-off payment of the net amount of the rulings
(being the gross amount payable by the Lessee to the
Group off-setting the gross amount payable by the Group
to the Lessee pursuant to the Arbitration Ruling) of
RMB589,000,000 (equivalent to $749,000,000) be paid
by the Lessee to the Group within ten days from the date
of the Arbitration Ruling being served, and the Arbitration
Ruling shall has legal effect from the date when the
Arbitration Ruling was made.

The Group filed an application to the Intermediate
People’s Court of Guangzhou City, Guangdong Province
(the "Court”) for enforcement of the Arbitration Ruling
by the Lessee on 19 March 2014 and received a notice
of acceptance of lawsuit dated 24 March 2014 from the
Court.

On 17 April 2014, the Group received a notice of
responses to legal proceedings (the “Notice”) from the
Court. According to the Notice, the Court accepted
the application made by the Lessee for revoking the
arbitration ruling made by the Arbitration Commission
dated 5 March 2014.

On 5 May 2015, the Group entered into a settlement
agreement (the “Settlement Agreement”) with the Lessee
to settle the dispute in respect of the Lease Agreement.
The Lease Agreement and the supplemental agreement
were terminated pursuant to the Settlement Agreement.
The Group agreed to withdraw its application to
enforce the Arbitration Ruling made by the Arbitration
Commission and waive the monetary amount, including
default payment that the Lessee was ordered to pay to the
Group under the Arbitration Ruling. The Lessee agreed to
withdraw its application to revoke the Arbitration Ruling
and, waive the rental of oil storage tanks that the Group
was ordered to refund to the Lessee under the Arbitration
Ruling. Each of the Group and the Lessee agreed to be
responsible for its own arbitration fees, legal and other
expenses incurred. The Group and the Lessee agreed that
they will continue to cooperate in the storage business,
and the Lessee agreed to assist the Group to identify new
customer(s) to lease the oil storage tanks contemplated
under the Lease Agreement.
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13 B RHEMEUKEE)

(b)

B HEWERR 2 REE)
N-E—ME=AFH  A&EE
BREMHZE S 2 MR
E([HEFRE]) - HEZEE
WS AREABABREERAER
ZEvARTAEA - —REBEARE
BB HRE S 58 (BIAT A e
NAEE 2 BERBIBRAEEIR
B AN FARAZES
%) A R #589,000,0007T (1HE
1749,000,0007T) * LA R fRELH)
SRERERFRRARABHEAS
SRR -

AEBR -_T-WNF=A+1H
FEREBMTHRARZER
(&R )) BB R I A A BT
BEOREAMFOR - WEDEB
RZT—MFE=A=+MHBEL
ZHITRMUZBME -

R-ZF—MEMA+ER A%
BERELIGELZERBANE
(HBAE]) - REBBAE - Ak
EXEAMRARFRHEMFHEE
R -_E-HF=AARELK
REER -

RZZE-—RFHALE - A&E
B AAE A BT SZ AN AR 175 % ([ A0 iR
Waek |) - ARER M ER & 1%

Han - HE W= METHEER
BRI R L o AKER B
EIsthEE 8 & Pr{EEEDRT
R Z @B MITHR - LEARA
HARB R EEREE S MAE
BESXNZRBESE(BEED
&) o AHAR BB LR L 2/
P EEORT R - WA RREF
BHARAAR BB S RREAN
AR B HRHERE S o A RE M
HMARBAERE BN Z HEE
A EEERREMFEX - ANE
B N AR A R B S AR
RERTFER - WRABARE
BHAKEDEH TP HE mE
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13 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(b)

(b)

Impairment of trade debtors (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2015, allowance for
doubtful debts in relation to the Lease Agreement was
written off against the trade debtor directly pursuant to
the settlement with the Lessee. The Group would also
report to the tax bureau a tax loss resulting from such
impairment loss. Accordingly, the current tax recoverable
previously recognised was transferred to deferred tax
assets (see note 17(b)).

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during
the year is as follows:

13 ESRHMEERREE)

(b) EBEZEWIRFZREEE)
BE_T-AF+-_A=1—H
IFFEA - RIFEATE AT
MR - HEBRS KRR
REBCEENEZEKFIAS
itiH - ARE TS RN R 2]
ZREREEL ZHERR © &
It - ST AT 2 HERR 2 BN EA AT Yk [l 75
HEEBREREMEHEER
BiEE17(0)) °

FARRRBE B EBWT

At 1 January W—H—H
Exchange adjustments b H
Uncollectible amounts written off P 6 4B L [0 R IE
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H

Impairment of trade debtors (continued)

At 31 December 2015, trade debtors of $6,227,000
(2014: $121,704,000) were individually determined to
be impaired, of which $6,227,000 (2014: $6,613,000)
related to customers that were in financial difficulties
and management assessed that the receivables were not
expected to be recovered. In addition, specific allowance
for doubtful debts of $115,091,000 was recognised as at
31 December 2014 in respect of accrued rental income
receivable in relation to the Lease Agreement, which the
Lessee requested to terminate since 1 July 2011.

121,704 122,122
(2,352) (418)
(113,125) =
6,227 121,704

(b) BSEWRRZEEGE)
R-_ZE—FRE+_A=+—
B BB TEERBEZES
fE U BR 38 56,227,000 L ( — =
— P04 : 121,704,000 ) @ =
#6,227,0007C ( = F — P F :
6,613,0007T ) % K 55 1A B Bk PR 6
MEFE - MEREETTA EEK
RIBFEHEERE - B R
E-NE+-A=+—HpEE
WpaE A M TEIR FE AR AR & WK A E
R RIEARE#5115,091,000
UG mEMEABKR =T ——F
tA—BHBRRIBEAE RS -
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13 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 13 ESRHMERREGE)
(c) Trade debtors that are not impaired () XREZEWESHE
The ageing analysis of trade debtors that are neither WEERSERRIEREZE S
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired are FEUR BRFN N FEUR 248 2 BRER D AT
as follows: A

Neither past due nor impaired I A HA ORI E 21,536 23,240
Less than 1 month past due A E DR E A 1,684 2,636
1 to 2 months past due #EHI1 2= 2{@ A 1,206 2,300
Over 2 months past due BEREEE2ME A 32,884 22,898
35,774 27,834
57,310 51,074
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate Sz 48 360 BRI A R (E 2 I R BR FX T ER N
to a wide range of customers for whom there was no EAHENGESRC TRBEARER
recent history of default. 7 -
Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate B f60 HA{B W0 48 R (B 2 FE AR BR 3R T BA 7K
to a number of independent customers that have good EBZEZEERNIEECEBYREA
track record with the Group. Based on past experience, - IBIBERFLE  BEEHREHA
management believes that no impairment allowance is MRS ERELRERE REAE
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not EEXWESKEH  MxSERD
been a significant change in credit quality and these AR AR BB [E] o AN E2 (B I £ Bt
balances are considered fully recoverable. The Group does LEBFEEAERR -

not hold any collateral over these balances.

14 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 14 BERBE£EEEHE
(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: () HEeRBELZHEHEARE:

Time deposits EHTFR - 8,085
Other cash and cash equivalents HEMIRE MR EEEE 52,703 37,947
52,703 46,032
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14 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued) 14 BERBLZEEE(E)
(b) Reconciliation of loss before taxation to cash (b) BRBAEEELSEEKMEBRSE
generated from operations: Z YR :

Loss before taxation MR FL B ETE (97,531) (115,491)
Adjustments for: AT ZIEEL R
Interest income FEUWA 4 (393) (368)
Finance costs BA TS AR ZN 5(a) 70,656 79,165
Depreciation e 5(c) 118,417 119,695
Amortisation of land lease TR E BN 5(0)
premium 7,022 7,114
Amortisation of intangible 208 B 5(c)
assets 203 204
Loss on disposal of property,  HEWZE  HE & 4
plant and equipment R EE 31 104
Exchange differences PE W =58 (1,643) 32

Changes in working capital: BIEA G EE)

Decrease in consumable parts  SEFEmIE L 1,417 358
Decrease/(increase) in trade 5 R HE bW IR
and other receivables A, (3 hn) 4,604 (18,182)
Increase in other payables H b~ 3008 M 5T
and accruals E===hie | 130 3,182
Cash generated from operations A% 2 EFT1SIR & 102,913 75,813
15 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 15 HtEARARRER

Other payables and accruals E b FIE RETIRE R 47,387 51,372
Deferred revenue TRIEWA 2,927 7,810
50,314 59,182
At 31 December 2015 and 2014, all of the other payables and RZE—RAFER_ZET—NF+_HA
accruals are expected to be settled or recognised as income =+—8 - FiB EMENRIE REHE
within one year. BERAEAR —FRNBELER B
A o
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16 BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS 16 SRITERRHEMEER
(a) The analysis of the carrying amount of bank loans (a) RITERREMEERABENS
and other borrowings is as follows: MWT :

Current liabilities wREIAE
Short-term bank loans RERITER 59,680 63,380
Convertible bonds AR ES 49,531 -
109,211 63,380
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Long-term bank loans REAIRITE K 1,016,947 1,143,366
1,126,158 1,206,746
(b) At 31 December 2015, the bank loans and other (b) A-—=—HF+=-HA=+—8
borrowings were repayable as follows: RITERREMEEER TSI
EEE

Bank loans (secured) RITER(HER)
Within 1 year or on demand A —EF Sk FE SR 59,680 63,380
After 1 year but within 2 years —FRERFA 62,067 63,380
After 2 years but within 5 years MEREBERFER 312,723 266,194
After 5 years AFE 642,157 813,792
1,016,947 1,143,366
1,076,627 1,206,746
Convertible bonds (unsecured) AR E S (EIRA)
Within 1 year or on demand R —EF N sk fE ZE ki 49,531 =
(c) At 31 December 2015, the Group had banking facilities (0 R=Z2E—RF+=-_A=+—8H "
totalling $1,076,627,000 (2014: $1,206,746,000) which AEEZRITHREBEES H
were secured by certain of the Group’s property, plant 1,076,627,00070( —ZF — M4 :
and equipment with net book value of $849,572,000 1,206,746,0007T) * JiLAZKRE B
(2014: $1,023,885,000) and interests in land held for 8% T /% 8 /5 849,572,000 7T ( —
own use under operating leases with net book value T —PO4F : 1,023,885,0007T) 2
of $236,008,000 (2014: $256,758,000). The banking M BERERERETRER
facilities were utilised to the extent of $1,076,627,000 as 236,008,000 7T ( =& — PO 4 :
at 31 December 2015 (2014: $1,206,746,000). 256,758,000 7T ) Z 1R 4% & &

EEAER R L2 ERIEER
HoRNZE—FRE+-A=1+—
B BEERAZRITRHEREES
1,076,627,00070 ( == — P04 :
1,206,746,0007T) ©
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16 BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS (continued)
(d) On 7 December 2015, the Group entered into a

16 MITERRHEMEEE)
d R=Z—AHFE+=-_A+H &x&%

subscription agreement with a third party to issue two
series, Series A and Series B, of unsecured convertible
bonds with principal amount up to $50,000,000 each and
one year maturity (“Convertible Bonds”). The Convertible
Bonds are interest-bearing at 8% per annum and the
interest are payable quarterly in arrears. The Convertible
Bonds can be converted to shares of the Company at
$0.3802 per share (“Conversion Price”), subject to anti-
dilutive and dividend protection adjustments. The holder
of the Convertible Bonds (“bond holder”) has the right
to convert all or any part of the principal amount of the
Convertible Bonds into shares of the Company at any time
from the date on which the closing price of the shares
of the Company traded in Hong Kong Stock Exchange
reaches 140% of the Conversion Price up to the maturity
date.

Series A Convertible Bonds

On 16 December 2015, the Group issued Series A of
the Convertible Bonds (“Series A Convertible Bonds”)
with a maturity date of 16 December 2016 (“Series A
Maturity Date”). The Group may early redeem the Series
A Convertible Bonds from 16 June 2016 to 16 December
2016 at principal amount plus any accrued but unpaid
interest thereon the redemption date. Any Series A
Convertible Bonds not previously redeemed, converted
or purchased and cancelled will be redeemed at principal
amount on Series A Maturity Date.

The Series A Convertible Bonds are subject to the
fulfilment of covenants relating to the level of
consolidated net asset value that the Group is required
to maintain. If the Group were to breach the financial
covenants, the Series A Convertible Bonds would become
payable on demand.

EHE—FE = LB
AT (E 251 (R R R R
)7 BEAABRKRES e
%8 _FBR 4% A50,000,0007T + IR
—F R EIH([ TRk fES]) - 7]
R EFIES% FHEFE - I
AREEREMAFE - ATRRE
A AR EA%0.3802 T A AN A
A& - MR A R EE R IR E R
BT AR ([823R(E ) - Al #afR
BEERBBAESFREAlBRE
RAERRRMNDNEBHEIMEE
Z W EEEIRE140% E B e
ZR|HAE I ERERE  #E2EEk
EfAER D AT RR (G 57N & FR e iR
BRI °

YRR E S
R-ZF—RF+-_A+RA &
SEZTRINFARBRER R
SRR ES]) - BIEA R
E—R"F+ZA+RB(EHNF
FHME]) - AEEATR-_F—X
FRATARBEZZ—RE+Z
ATRB  BARSENEEER
B HEERI REHERNHOFES -
RFRE RS F A gARES - T
fISEATRIER - BB E Kt
H ZH PRI ES - BRE
SIRBH R A S REEO -

Z5| R B SR AR E
FHRTOERREEFEKTED
Rk o AR EIE R R
5| F AR ES AR ERE
2.
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16 BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS (continued) 16 SBITERRHEMEEE)
(d) (continued) d) &)

Series A Convertible Bonds (continued)

The Group could not fulfil the financial covenants relating
to the Group’s consolidated net assets value as at 31
December 2015, and therefore the bond holder has the
right at any time by notice to the Group to require the
Convertible Bonds to be immediately repaid prior to Series
A Maturity Date. Subsequent to the balance sheet date,
the Group have obtained consent from the bond holder
to revise the financial covenants to reduce the level of
consolidated net asset value that the Group is required to
maintain. The Group is in the process of formalising the
revision of the financial covenants through entering into
a supplementary agreement with the bond holder. With
the revised covenants, the Group expects to repay the
convertible bonds by Series A Maturity Date.

Series B Convertible Bonds

The Group will issue Series B of the Convertible Bonds
(“Series B Convertible Bonds”) to the bond holder upon
fulfilment of certain conditions.

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
(@) Current tax recoverable in the consolidated balance

sheet represents:

RY|RARRES ()

HRAEER —_ZT—HF+_A
=t BREERAEEEREE
ARG - B
BABRERZHIFEIH A F ks
BHBEAMTAKE - BXRTAE
BABBES - REER A%
BCRBEFFAEARE @ E7]
b e N W SE I 5
BiR e BEFEKRT - XEER
EBREREFFE AR LT
& BEMBIGEZER] - B
RERIERIR - AEREFARNR K
51 FA B8 A A {E R AT R AE 5

Ry R ES
REEBRERE THRFE @
BFRA ABITRIIZATHRARIE
#([ RA 2 ek ES]) -

17 GEEERBERTZAEH

GEEEEBERT 2 AHERR
HIE :

PRC Enterprise Income Tax recoverable A] 4[] /b B 1> 2 PR S
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT $R AR P

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LATTHIR + BEEAERRSIN)

17 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
(continued)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:
The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position and the movements during the year are as
follows:

Deferred tax arising from: EZEFHERE :

17 GEEEREBRPZAEHRE)

(b) ERABELHELEERERS
FRNRERE SRR R P ER
EEFEEE) BEREES)
BT

Depreciation

allowances

Future in excess of
benefits of  the related
tax losses depreciation

pichaepicle o

BIEEE Ew
Z AR5 TERE
$'000 $'000

Fr Fr

At 1 January 2014 R-_ZE—NF—HF—H — 6,276 6,276
Exchange adjustments b 5 SR = (25) (25)
Credited to profit or loss FFABREK
(note 6(a)) (fi7E6(a)) - (588) (588)
At 31 December 2014 M- —MF
+=-A=+—H - 5,663 5,663
At 1 January 2015 RZZE—RF—HA—H - 5,663 5,663
Exchange adjustments PE 5 R 650 (306) 344
Transfer from current tax HEENEART Y B T8
recoverable (note 13(b)) (155 13(b)) (18,769) = (18,769)
Charged/(credited) to profit 1B /(Ft A)1Bzx
or loss (note 6(a)) (Kfzx6(a)) 3,280 (581) 2,699
At 31 December 2015 R-ZE—RHF
+=A=+—H (14,839) 4,776 (10,063)
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B RS ER AR P

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LA TTHIR + BAEAERIN)

17 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET 17 HREEEBBRPZABHE)

(continued)

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised: () RERZELEHEBEEE :
In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note IRIRMIFE1(0) BTk 2 S ETEUR -
1(0), the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets HREREEARTARERE
in respect of the cumulative tax losses of approximately BT TS Al A RE R 7B B AR om A
$661 million (2014: $572 million) as it is not probable IR G EE - AEBXRER
that future taxable profits against which the losses can be ZEErMIEEEN661EIL(ZE
utilised will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and — P04 : 5721870 ) FERIRERL
entity. The tax losses of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries will HEE - AEBHFR BB A A]
expire in 5 years after the relevant tax losses were incurred MRS ESESEE B S EER
while tax losses for the Group’s subsidiaries in Hong Kong HBSFERER - MIBEIRITH
do not expire under the current tax legislation. BIRP  REBERBOHBA

AR TS R IR R AR o

(d) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised: (d) KRERZELEFHIBEEE :

In PRC, dividends paid by a foreign-invested enterprise &2 e nlR D EBFLID » INE
to its foreign investors are subject to withholding tax EIFEEIMEESE ZREE
at a rate of 10% unless reduced by treaty. Under the N1 0% TEHITL - ERFZHTUA
grandfathering treatments, undistributed profits of a REIT - INERER=ZTTLF
foreign-invested enterprise as at 31 December 2007 are TZA=+—HZRPBENE
exempted from withholding tax. AR AANTEINR ©

At 31 December 2015, temporary differences relating RZE—FRF+_A=+—
to the undistributed profits of subsidiaries amounted == = R/N S Bl ol oW | D
to $156,044,000 (2014: $159,072,000). Deferred tax HEZHRESTEE=E4L 4
liabilities of $7,802,000 (2014: $7,954,000) have not 156,044,000 7T ( — = — PO 4 :
been recognised in respect of the tax that would be 159,072,000 7t ) * &R A Al &
payable on the distribution of these retained profits as the ERR IR ERDBFEMm
Company controls the dividend policy of these subsidiaries R 2HIERRELERIBE S
and it has been determined that it is probable that the £7,802,0007C ( =& — PO 4F :
profits will not be distributed in the foreseeable future. 7,954,0007T) © [REARAN B

HZENBABZBEHE 1
HERRATRE NN A RAS K 5K
A e
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BA RS R AR MTRE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LATTHIR + BEEAERRSIN)

18

19

AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED PARTIES
The amounts due to related parties are unsecured, interest-free
and with no fixed terms of repayment.

The related parties have confirmed that they have no intention
to request repayment within twelve months from the balance
sheet date and accordingly, the balances are shown as
non-current.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The employees of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are members
of a state-managed retirement benefit scheme operated by the
PRC government. The Group is required to contribute a certain
percentage of the salaries, bonuses and certain allowances of
its staff to the retirement scheme. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement benefit scheme is to make
the required contribution under the scheme. The Group has no
other material obligation for the payment of pension benefits
associated with this scheme beyond the annual contributions
described above.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
("“the MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF
scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan administered
by independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make contributions to
the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a
cap of monthly relevant income of $30,000 ($25,000 prior to
June 2014). Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

18

19

FE 13 BAER 5 SRR
FERARE 5 2 AR EEA - BN
EEEERY

B ERR RS EEERNERH
BErt—EARENR - Bt - ZFHE
RIRRIERE °

EERAER
AEBEPHEZHMBARZEE AT
BT AR IE 2 BB R REFIGT
ElZKE - AKRBEEREBT 2%
B~ FEAL RS TR Z R AB B D (R
LR BIHR o BLARRIRE R &
ME @ AREZE—BERRIEZE
SEHATH ZHK - By Bl B F 4R
S REBEZAT BIRERKRE B/ T
EEEMEBARNKEAE -

AEBINBEE B REBIEHEAZIE
8 ' IRIERER AR S T EES
FEBFEATEETE([RESH
2l]) - ST B —HABUIIT
ANBE 2 REHFRNRTE - BiER
Beitdl EXREEEASBIRESR
BRWA Z5% M T EIEL R - #
LA A #8B8 A.30,0007T (== —
X BRI A25,0007T) AR o [AErEl
EH 2 I RENS B T ES -
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B RS ER AR P

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LA TTHIR + BAEAERIN)

20 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS 20 DEZEEZRHXS
Pursuant to ordinary resolutions passed on 28 December 2012, BWER-_ZE——F+_A=1+N\B@E

the Company adopted a share option scheme (“the scheme”)
for the purpose of enabling the Company to recruit and retain
high-calibre employees and attract resources that are available
to the Group and to provide the Company with a means of
giving incentive to, rewarding, remunerating, compensating
and/or providing benefits to such persons who contribute or
may bring benefit to the Group. The scheme remains in force
for a period of 10 years from adoption and expires on 27
December 2022.

Under the scheme, the board of directors of the Company
may at their discretion grant options to any eligible participant
including any employee, director, consultant, agent, business
affiliate, business partner, joint venture partner, strategic
partner of the Company or any subsidiaries of the Company, or
any supplier or provider of goods or services to the Company
or any subsidiaries of the Company as may be determined by
the directors from time to time to subscribe for the shares of
the Company.

No share option was granted to or exercised by any of the
Directors and senior management during the year ended
31 December 2015 (2014: Nil) and no share option was
outstanding under the 2012 scheme as at 31 December 2015
(2014: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS R AR MTRE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LATTHIR + BEEAERRSIN)

21 CAPITAL AND RESERVES
(@) Movements in components of equity
The reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances of each component of the Group’s consolidated
equity is set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity. Details of the changes in the Company’s
individual components of equity between the beginning
and the end of the year are set out below.

The Company

Share
capital

B
$'000

21

Share
premium
RiraE

$'000

BEXREE

(a) REFARHD2BE
RNEBIRE RS S A B
B R ERN B IR R R A EE
BEIR o ANQFFERES AP
APRAFEERYEHRNESF
BEFIAT °

Capital  Accumulated
reserves losses
EAfHE iR

$'000 $'000

i
Balance at 1January 2014 ~ R=B-M%E

T

T T

—R—H2&H 373,264 710,477 - (537,828) 545,913
Changes in equity for 2014: —B—MEEXSE
Loss and total comprehensive  FREE R 2 EUE
income for the year 5 = - - (4103) (4103)
Balance at 31 December 2014 R=B-[F
and 1 January 2015 T=B=+-H
R=Z-1f
—-R-B2&H 373,264 710,477 - (541,931) 541,810
Changes in equity for 2015: —FB-REEEEE :
Loss and total comprehensive ~ ERE K 2 EE
income for the year o - - - (4,452) (4,452)
Issurance of convertible bonds /7] & = - 469 - 469
Balance at 31 December 2015 R=Z-1%
t=A=+-A
LB 373,264 710,477 469 (546,383) 537,827
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B RS R AR TRE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BAFSTTHIR + BAERERRSN)

21

CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)
(b) Share capital

Ordinary shares of $0.10 each: EREE0.10TTZ2EER :

Authorised: JEIE ¢

At 31 December 2014 and 2015 NN EN—_FT—hHF
+-—A=+—8

Issued and fully paid: BEZETRHE -

At 31 December 2014 and 2015

+=-—A=+—~H

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled
to one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All
ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s
residual assets.

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves

0]

(i)

(iii)

Share premium
The application of the share premium account is
governed by the Companies Law (Revised) of the
Cayman Islands.

Special reserve
The special reserve arose from the reverse acquisition
in December 2004.

Translation reserve

The translation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of
the financial statements of operations outside Hong
Kong. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policy set out in note 1(s).
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21

RZE—WEFER—_FT—RF

BEXRREEE)
(b) K&

Number

of ordinary

EERHA
'000
T

10,000,000

Amount
-]
$'000
T+t

shares

1,000,000

3,732,638

373,264

(c)

BBRBEAGRERTRED
IREHE  YHERNARRE

& LRER—FKRE

R B

HRREAARNYAESEA
A% -

EETERAE
(i) KHEE
g ERNBERAYHS
BEARE(RERDEE -
(ii) 4RI
FRlmEBERE _—_TTMOF
ToANRKEMESL -
(i) X5 #HE
RPEHEEBREBRETEN
SR B RREE

M BINEZRR - D
RBH 1) E SRR
BRIE -
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BA RS R AR MTRE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LATTHIR + BEEAERRSIN)

21 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(9]

(d)

Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(iv) Statutory reserve
Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations for
foreign investment enterprises, a portion of the
profits of the Group’s subsidiaries operating in the
PRC is required to transfer to the statutory reserve.
The amounts of profits transferred to the statutory
reserve are determined by the board of directors
of the subsidiaries according to the articles of
association. The reserve is restricted as to use and is
not available for distribution.

(v) Capital reserve
The capital reserve represents the amount allocated
to the unexercised equity component of convertible
bonds issued by the company recognised in
accordance with the accounting policy adopted for
convertible bonds in note 1(k).

Distributability of reserves

The Company'’s reserves available for distribution to its
shareholders comprise share premium and accumulated
losses which in aggregate amounted to approximately
$164 million as at 31 December 2015 (2014: $169
million). Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the
Cayman Islands, the share premium of the Company
is available for paying distributions or dividends to
shareholders subject to the provisions of its memorandum
and articles of association and provided that immediately
following the payment of distribution or dividends, the
Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business. In accordance with the
Company'’s articles of association, distributions shall be
payable out of the profits or other reserves, including the
share premium account, of the Company.

21 EBXRRREEE)

(0

(d)

ERRRARDA

EEEERRARE)

(iv) EEME
REEBIBRELEDN
HEERER - AEER
B E B B A B D
7 i A 78 8B E R E
B BREEAEMEBEN R
NEBBEHNBRARNES
ERBEERAAUETE - &
EREZEIRGATER
tEDIK

(v) EBEXRRHE
BERFHEIERERRA
BEEITAIMBRES 2 RTT
w2 & BIREM
AR (k)P EBL AT AR (B 25 2R
N2 GRTERRFER

A5 RS

RAE AR TR 2 REEE
BDaERZFTEER  RZZ
—HE+-A=+—BA&H£H
1648 (ZE—HF : 1.691%
7o) ° IRIERSHS A RNEE
i) ARRIZBRMDRERAE
DIRSIEAIRBIREE TR « 1
Z0 KRR BARFE A TE
BERAARMAAZRE  mA
EERED R MRERER - A
AIIEER A B X5 BIEF EEE
BAETS - IMIBAA R 2 484 E72
A - ANAR) 2D IRBEM BT
B - BREARR 2RO R
EERIRER ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS ER AR P

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LA TTHIR + BAEAERIN)

21 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued) 21 BEXRfHEE)
(e) Capital management (e) BRAEM

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group'’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.
Further details regarding the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern are disclosed in note 1(b).

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of
a net debt-to-capital ratio. For this purpose the Group
defines net debt as total debt (which includes interest-
bearing loans and borrowings), less cash and cash
equivalents. Capital comprises all components of equity,
plus net debt.

During 2015, the Group's strategy, which was unchanged
from 2014, was to maintain the net debt-to-capital ratio
at an appropriate level. In order to maintain or adjust the
ratio, the Group will consider and may adjust the amount
of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares, return
capital to shareholders, raise new debt financing or sell
assets to reduce debt.

The net debt-to-capital ratio (as defined above) was 0.93
and 0.85 as at 31 December 2015 and 2014 respectively.

Except for the convertible bonds which require the
fulfilment of financial covenants as disclosed in note
16(d), neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

22 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

AREE 2 ERNBREHEERAIA
REARBE 2 SELEZRLS
VA0 EL BE A A SRR 10 3 K% (R B
AR A TIR RS - WRIS &
L BARRBAREE AR -
AR AEERBELLRNIZES
15 - RIE1DRE -

AEHESNFAEHEALERS

SERBABE(BEFERERR
fEE)RRE KRS EERE G
BFAEE - EAREHMA DN
DRFERE -

i SN SIE T 3y
RI—ZT—ME—H  SHFEF
BEEEHERANLERNEE
K o BT R FEZRILE
AREEKZ B R AR ABIRN T
BERZBEEHE - BITH - R
BIRATIR - SEMEHEBE
g EEENRAER -

R-B-—AFR-_Z—NF+=
A=1+—8 FREHEAXHN
HR(EER LX) DHIR0.93%
0.85 °

B B RE 16(d) P BB R SZ A 7%
ek Z IR EZRIN - ARE R
EATAAIP B A BB X BIRSMT
PNz EARTE °

22 BEEBREERAAE
FE - Eenslk  FIRNREERR
SRANEBA—REFERTESE -
ELERESAEENTSERER
NEHRETXOMRER -

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency
risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s business.
The Group's exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

106 ANNUAL REPORT 2015 HANS ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT $R AR P

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LATTHIR + BEEAERRSIN)

22 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 22 BBEBREERAAEBEE)
(continued)
(a) Credit risk (a) EERE
The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade AEENEERMRTEREES
and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents. RE A EWE IELA&EEi&EEi
Management has a credit policy in place and the —rﬁﬁﬁ BEEEEHREER

exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring
credit over a certain amount. These evaluations focus on
the customer’s past history of making payments when
due and current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customer as well as pertaining
to the economic environment in which the customer
operates. Trade receivables are due within 30 days
from the date of billing. Debtors with balances that are
more than 1 month past due are requested to settle all
outstanding balances before any further credit is granted.
Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral from
customers.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each customer rather
than the industry and country in which customers operate
and therefore significant concentration of credit risk
primarily arise when the Group has significant exposure
to individual customers. At the balance sheet date, the
Group has a certain concentration of credit risk as 67%
(2014: 54%) of the total trade and other receivables was
due from the Group's five largest customers.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group's
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other
receivables are set out in note 13.

In respect of cash and cash equivalents, the Group limits
its exposure to credit risk by placing deposits with financial
institutions that meet the established credit rating or other
criteria. Given these high credit ratings, management does
not expect any counterparty to fail to meet its obligations.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group has a certain
concentration of credit risk as 27% (2014: 49%) of total
cash and cash equivalents were deposited with a financial
institution in the PRC.

ERERARAT

Ve BERAEEZ EEE

1% °
ZoN

HEHREMERFIANE - 4
RAAERBEETEESRELZ
BRI ETEMIMEER M Ut
FrHAH B R BERDERD
R8N IR HEREE ) - AL EE
EPRERER KRR P &L
ERERZAAOER - EH/E
YRR TR B 2 AR BB HRERT30
AEIH - B AMEBE—EA

N Ez#er RIZEZBUBERH
BRI A BERER - A5HE
—RAGREPUKERER R -

AEEEEZEERR - I%"é
RERPZEBSERE -
PRS2 T %&I%Zb
BRI 2 EERE - EFER
HEd o  WEER - AEENER
ABFEE S REMEYKRER
67%(=F—DUF : 54%) * K

AR -ERENEESTAR -

HEmEBEAEEmMEHES NE
HEKFEEE EERRZE/
WEESIRHIE13 °

RRERFSEEER - AKE
ﬁﬂ%ﬁmﬁmFWA%EEf
AEAR SR B MR 2 & B - R
%Uﬁﬁﬁﬁky\ZEﬁ % o BHME
ERE  HEBEERETEE
ARG FEEZEEMT -

R-_ZTE—RHF+-_A=+—8"
rEEZHEeRACEEERE
5827 % (= Z—PU4F : 49% ) 1F
KRR EIEE - i)
AEX—ERENEESETER -
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22 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
(continued)
(b) Liquidity risk

22 BEREERAMMEGE)

(b) EBERBEREE

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including the
short term investment of cash surpluses and the raising
of loans to cover expected cash demands, subject to
approval by the Company’s board when the borrowings
exceed certain predetermined levels of authority. The
Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines
of funding from major financial institutions to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term. Note
1(b) explains management’s plans for managing liquidity
needs of the Group to enable it to continue to meet its
obligations as they fall due.

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group’s

AEEET 2 ER 2 EERAH
BTERReZEE  BEMR
& BRIERIIRE REREIA
FENFERR S F R - HHEEB
BIRSTEE 2B T IRAENKFH -
ERRRREZTGCHE - K
RAZBRBEHERRE MR
HiZ RBIEFR - ARRREER
RABREHERREEZCEHE
BRANAZEERE - ED
HEHRRARSIERK - MG
I(b)EEERAEERBESH
KZEEEE  BEBNER
ENEIMEE -

TRIMAEB ZITESRE
BEREEBZHTEOMRF

non-derivative financial liabilities, which are based on 1B - EBRERGORITREESR
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest (BEBEATE 2R s
payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating, HEIR R HALEER -

based on rates current at the balance sheet date) and the
earliest date the Group can be required to pay:

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

MEXH) RARERFEFTEE
Rz BHETE

AHARRRETH

Morethan ~ More than Carrying More than
Within 1year 2 years amount Within 1 year Carrying
1yearor  butwithin  butwithin  More than at Tyearor  butwithin  butwithin ~ More than amount at
on demand 2years 5 years 5 years Total 31December  ondemand 2years 5 years 5 years Total 31 December
i R
-FRg BB-F BERE TIA=t-B . —ERE i t-A=t-B
REAR  EREA ERFR  BEIRE BEE R it A Bl
$'000 $000 $000 $'000 $000 §000 §000 §000
T n i T i i T T
Bank loans SAER 114,281 11,120 431,97 698,666 1,362,034 1,076,627 1371917 133,012 451,3% 938330 1,660,655 1,206,746
Convertible bonds TR ES 54,000 - - - 54,000 49531 - - - - - -
Other payables and accrudls ~ £fs RER 47387 - - 47,387 47,387 5137 - - 51372 51372
Amounts due to related parties &3 = 228,69 = 228,69 228,69 = 235,91 - 235,91 235,961
215,668 339816 437,967 698,666 1,692,117 1,402,241 189,289 368973 451,3% 938330 1947988 1494079

Note: Further details regarding maturity term of the bank loans
and convertible bonds and the going concern of the Group
are set out in note 1(b).
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22 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

(continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (continued)

(9]

Further details regarding maturity term and re-financing
option of the bank loans and convertible bonds are set
out in note 1(b).

Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from
bank borrowings. The Group's bank borrowings at 31
December 2015 were issued at variable rates and fixed
rates and therefore expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk. The Group's interest rate profile as monitored by
management is set out in (i) below.

(i) Interest rate profile

Effective

interest rate

ERAIZ

22

BBEBEERAAEE)

(b) EERBMERR(E)

(0

FRRITER R AR ESFHOE
HAKBRERERNESHE
N1 (D) °

MRER
AEEZNXEARTERERT
B - AEER T —AF+=
A=t+—BZRITEERZHH
EREEMNETE - EMSAE
EEER SR ERER - AEE
Z RS R B I fE B A
RTXEE()A °

(i) RI=ER

Effective
EENEE
ERA=

Amount
8
$'000
i

Net fixed rate ER(E8) /X
(borrowings)/deposits: b
Time deposits TR - - 0.60% 8,085
Convertible bonds R ES 9.3% (49,531) = -
(49,531) 8,085
Net variable rate FE(£8)/#R
(borrowings)/deposits: ESE
Cash at bank FRE 0.01% - 0.30% 52,703  0.01%-0.35% 37,947
Bank loans FIEH 5.15% - 5.90% (1,076,627)  6.16% - 6.55% (1,206,746)
(1,023,924) (1,168,799)
Total net borrowings BEFROE (1,073,455) (1,160,714)
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22 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
(continued)
(c) Interest rate risk (continued)

(i)

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2015, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant, would
increase/decrease the Group's loss for the year and
accumulated losses by approximately $9,826,000
(2014: $11,688,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the balance sheet date and had been
applied to the exposure to interest rate risk for all
non-derivative financial instruments in existence at
that date. The 100 basis points increase or decrease
represents management’s assessment of a reasonably
possible change in interest rates over the period until
the next annual balance sheet date. The analysis is
performed on the same basis as 2014.

(d) Currency risk

0]

Foreign currency transactions

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily
through billings of storage and transshipment
income that are denominated in a currency other
than the functional currency of the operations to
which they relate. The currency giving rise to this risk
are primarily United States dollars (“USD").

As the Hong Kong dollars (“HKD") is pegged to the
USD, the Group considers the risk of movements
in exchange rates between the HKD and the USD
to be insignificant. As such, no sensitivity analysis is
presented.
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22 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
(continued)
(d) Currency risk (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Recognised assets and liabilities

In respect of trade receivables and deposits held in
currencies other than the functional currency of the
operations to which they relate, the Group ensures
that the net exposure is kept to an acceptable level,
by buying or selling foreign currencies at spot rates
where necessary to address short-term imbalances.

All the Group's borrowings are denominated in the
functional currency of the entity taking out the loan.
Given this, management does not expect that there
will be any significant currency risk associated with
the Group’s borrowings.

Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group’s exposure
at the balance sheet date to currency risk arising
from recognised assets or liabilities denominated
in a currency other than the functional currency of
the entity to which they relate. For presentation
purposes, the amounts of the exposures are
expressed in HKD, translated using the spot rate at
the balance sheet date.

22

BBEBEERAAEE)

(d) E¥mERE)

(i)

(iii)

ERAEERER
ERNNBRAEBZNER
AN 2 B A 2 KAt

B RWBRARRFR - &
SEeALRERNTF
e - UIREEXRE AR
BHIMNE  BRFZER
FrE— BRI X HIKF -

AEBEZRABEYNLAE
MERCERBZIYEER
HE - At EEEL
BERAEEZEEE®EE
ERMEAZERERER

AEHNEE AR
TRIBAEEREER
EHRAAEEERES
MM%ZEMW@Z i
REEXRBEMELZE
%H 2 1B - RIERIZ
A BEREEEER ZE
KEBSBILIIR °

2015 2014

—2-HF —PF

United States United States

Dollars Dollars

Ep e

$'000 $'000

Tt T

Trade and other receivables B 5 K H e IE 6,827 2,534
Cash and cash equivalents ReR\LEEIEA 2,565 3,654
Overall exposure to currency risk — E282 5 ¥ & ke 9,392 6,188

ERRRARDA
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22 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
(continued)

(e)

Fair values

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not
materially different from their fair values as at 31
December 2015 and 2014, except for the amounts due to
related parties which are unsecured, interest-free and with
no fixed terms of repayment. Given these terms, it is not
meaningful to disclose their fair values.

23 OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Group as lessee

At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of certain properties, which fall
due as follows:

(a)

(b)

Within one year —FRQ
After one year but within five years ~ —%&EBERFR
After five years hFE

Leases are negotiated for an average term of 1 to 10 years
with fixed rentals. None of the leases includes contingent
rentals.

The Group as lessor
The Group leases out certain dock and storage facilities
under operating leases.

Rental and storage income earned during the year
was approximately $218 million (2014: $207 million).
The leases are negotiated for a lease term of 1 to 15
years (2014: 1 to 15 years). None of the leases includes
contingent rentals.
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22 BEREERAMMEGE)

(e)

ARE

FEcr TAZ AfReBEER
TERFRZZE—NF+Z
A=+—BzZArBEIREEART
B - EIEH - 2B REETER
HA 2 FEST AR 5 5B AN - B
ZEEKT  BEESEAAET
EEE o

23 REHERH

(a)

AEMAEREBEA

REER - NEERET A HEE
ZETHERREHERIN 2R
RRERSAREZBIHAMT

2,689 4,381
765 3,110
325 541

3,779 8,032

(b)

BAOTRBEE—E+F2FH
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A MRT 1 R ©
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23

24

25

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (continued)

(b) The Group as lessor (continued)
The Group's total future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases are receivables as
follows:

23

REHERHE)

(b) FAEEERHBEAE)
AEEBRBEIAIREKEHE
e 2 KRB S AR T -

Within one year —FR
After one year but within five years ~ —4F&{BRER
After five years %

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At 31 December 2015, the Group had capital expenditure
contracted for but not provided in the financial statements in
respect of terminal development and acquisition of port and
storage facilities amounted to $18 million (2014: $20 million).

At 31 December 2015, the Group had capital expenditure not
contracted for but approved by the board and not provided
in the financial statements in respect of terminal development
and acquisition of port and storage facilities amounted to
approximately $140 million (2014: $149 million).

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group entered into
the following material related party transactions:

Key management personnel remuneration
Remuneration for key management personnel represents
amounts paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed in note 7.

None of the above related party transactions falls under the
definition of connected transaction or continuing connected
transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

24

25

58,459 47,592
34,735 44,361
41,349 48,897
134,543 140,850

BRI
R-ZE—RE+-_A=1+—H K&
EHEEGEKLERSOMET R
MEHB T OERRT EREREEZ
BARSTARB018ET(ZE—M
& :0.20f87L) °

R-ZE—RFE+-_A=+—H K&
B G RIGE K EE SO METFRIE
MIEHARFTOELESTS &R RN
BHRRERBEBEZ2EABAIA RN A
1,408 (= Z—[U4F : 1.49(87T) °

BERAIZEARS
BRTAMB]RERSERENR S KA
B AEBEEBRTBUTEAR
5

FREEEAENE
ZEBRBAEMEHIXNARRE
F2oRBORMF7HE) -

LAEAEE T R B A K LR RS
VUAEHBER FAFEFEIZN
EE °
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26 COMPANY-LEVEL BALANCE SHEET AT 31 DECEMBER 2015 26

R-B-RAF+ZA=1+—HHLQH
EHEERER

Non-current asset ERBEE

Interests in subsidiaries NG o 618,747 569,295

Current assets REEE

Prepayments and other receivables  FB{ 3B & H Ath fE U 5108 56 4,460

Cash and cash equivalents BekIE£EEER 860 169

916 4,629

Current liabilities REBEE

Other payables and accruals Hib I RIERERER 2,305 2,114

Convertible bonds AI AR E S 49,531 =
51,836 2,114

Net current (liabilities)/assets nE(aE) &EEFE 0000 (50,9200 2,515

Total assets less current liability AEERREBE G 567,827 571,810

Non-current liability FEREBEE

Amount due to a related party et — 2 RaB 77 O 30,000 30,000

NET ASSETS EEFRE 537,827 541,810

CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEAXR#E

Share capital A% 373,264 373,264

Reserves G 164,563 168,546

TOTAL EQUITY R 537,827 541,810

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on

21 March 2016.

RZE—R"FE=ZA-+—HEEEFE
B AR HETIES

David An Fung Chi Kwan, Nicholas

BELE BAEEE

Chairman Executive Director
£ HITEE
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27

28

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY

At 31 December 2015, the directors consider the immediate
parent and ultimate controlling party of the Group to be Vand
Petro-Chemicals (BVI) Company Limited, which is incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands. This entity does not produce
financial statements available for public use.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR

ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

Up to the date of approval of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a few amendments and new standards
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December
2015 and which have not been adopted in these financial
statements. These include the following which may be relevant
to the Group.

27

28

BEERBRRERA

R-ZBE—RHFE+-_A=+—8" &
EREAEENEET AR RER
¥ER% 7 AVand Petro-Chemicals (BVI)
Company Limited » HREEBREZ#
SR o L BTSRRI E®
FUAR AR ©

EEAERBE_ZT-HF+=A
=+ —BIEFEERERBZIERT ~ #
FR 3T Ftoded 7

BEAMBHRE  BEGFHALE
EMMETRIER] K — BT £
BEREBE_Z—AFE+_A=+—H
IEEEREARER - IIARERANAES
BME ° A F AL EAKEAR 2
7] mBERERIERIAT -

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

RS BEHR 2%
Ptz ast LXK

Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2012-2014 cycle

Amendments to HKAS 1, Disclosure
initiative

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38,
Clarification of acceptable methods
of depreciation and amortisation

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

(BEYBHREE ) —F——FF
AR

(BBBERDE 15 - FEAE
(BBEERDE 165 R(EES£4))
FIGPEEETA - BB E Ry o o]

BT

(BB HEER)DE 158 REEF
A RIHTHA

(BBUBHEERADFESN 2@ TA

1 January 2016
—F—NF—HA—H

1 January 2016
—E-RF—-H—H

1 January 2016
—F—NF—HA—H

1 January 2018
—T-\¥—A—H

1 January 2018
—ZT—\§—H—H

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these amendments is expected to be in the
period of initial application, but is not yet in a position to state
whether these amendments and new standard would have a
significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

AEE L EZFETNERER
HIRAHERZ P8 BeS R1EH
REEZFER] S ERGTHRE
M RREREATE
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
FFEHEEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A 7T317R )

Year ended 31 December

BE+T-H=1t—HLEE

2013 2014
—ZE—F
$'000 $'000
FIT FIT
RESULTS £
Revenue WA 144,884 204,019 220,421 211,506 223,203
Loss before taxation PR AIE 18 (143,253)  (124,608)  (115,444)  (115,491) (97,531)
Income tax FiSHt 182 573 584 125 (2,742)
Loss attributable to equity PA/NGT |
shareholders of FEfE &8
the Company (133,930) (116,713) (108,061) (108,814) (94,469)
Loss attributable to LSl e T
non-controlling interests FE(EEE (9,141) (7,322) (6,799) (6,552) (5,804)
Loss for the year FERERE (143,071) (124,035) (114,860) (115,366) (100,273)

At 31 December
R+=—A=t—H

2011
—F——F

$'000
T

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEERE&E

Total assets BERRE 2,009,661 1,907,379 1,831,548 1,710,331 1,495,723
Total liabilities BB 1,464,727 1,486,866 1,511,831 1,507,552 1,409,944
Non-controlling interests S 47,449 40,096 34,441 27,744 20,564
Total equity attributable to A2 BIRRER FE(L

equity shareholders of R

the Company 497,485 380,417 285,276 175,035 65,215
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Hans Energy Company Limited
ZER e EBARA A

Unit 2608, 26th Floor,
Harbour Centre, 25 Harbour Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong
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